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Paul Hamlyn Foundation

Paul Hamlyn was an entrepreneur, publisher and philanthropist, committed to providing new opportunities and
expenences for people regardless of their background From the outset, his overnding concern was to open up the
arts and education to everyone, but particularly to young people In 1987, he established the Paul Hamlyn
Foundation for general chantable purposes

Since then, we have continuously supported charitable activity in the areas of the arts, education and learning and
social justice In the UK, enabling individuals, especially children and young people, to expenence a better qualty of
Ife We also support local charities in India that help the poorest communities in that country gain access to basic
services

Paul Hamlyn died in August 2001, but the magnificent bequest of most of his estate to the Foundation enabled us to
build on our past approaches

Mission

To maximise opportunities for individuals and communities to realise therr potental and to expenence and enjoy a
better quality of hfe, now and in the future In particular, we are concerned with children and young people and with
disadvantaged people

The objects of the Foundation are to further such chartable purposes and to benefit such chantable institutions as the
Trustees see fit

Values

In e wath our founder Paul Hamlyn's values, we believe in giving opportunities by realising people’s potential and 1n
fighting prejudice

We are interested in finding better ways to do things and help organisations to sustain and develop theirr work We
pay particular attention to long-term 1ssues We are not afraid to address issues which others may find challenging or
unpopular  Whilst being willing to work in partnership with government, we are also prepared to challenge its (and
other people’s) established thinking We believe independent foundations have an important role to play in soctety

Strategic aims

Our strategic aims for the six years 2006-2012 are

1 Enabling people to experience and enjoy the arts
2 Developing people’s education and learning
3 Integrating marginahsed young people who are at imes of transition

In addition, we have three related aims

4  Advancing through research the understanding of the relationships between the arts, education and learning
and social change

5 Developing the capacity of organisations and people who facilitate our strategic ams

6 Developing the Foundation itself to be an exemplar foundation, existing in perpetuity




Programmes

We seek to achieve our first five aims by establishing three partly overlapping programmes for our work i the UK
arts, education and learning, and social jusice Themes and prionties within each programme may change over
tme Each of the three programmes has an open grant scheme and specal imtiatives, the latter targeted at 1ssues
we particularly want to address to achieve long term improvements in society We have a separate programme for
our work in India

We expect the programmes and the work we support to have an impact at the levels of individuals, organisations,
communities and policy

Grant-making information

Full information con the objectives of each proegramme, their themes and priorities, eligibility and assessment critena,
apphcation and grant making processes Is availlable on the Foundation's website Ebgible apphcants are asked to
submit onfine an outline application to the Foundation

For further information, please see www phf org uk
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Chair’s statement

Our Foundation aims to enable peopte to fulfil thelr potential and achieve a better quality of life This year many of
the organisations we support have faced powerful challenges to their ability to deliver on this aim.

In light of thesa circumstances, and following on from a review of our strateglc plan, we have baan tooking to find
ways to ensure that our funding 18 helping in the most effective ways. In parlicular, we hava decided to give less
walight to funding innovation and more to scaling up, or implementing In new cantexts, effective practice We will
continus to raview the filness for purpose of our grant schemes and make changes as nacessary

The reason for these changes 15 that, on the ground, across the UK, grantes organisattons are working hard to
make people's lives better The aame Is true in India, as | saw at first hand durnng a tdp this year Along with
fellow trustee Tim Bunting, | wisited our pariner Anandi, which 1s working alongside marginalised people in far
eastern Gujurat Remote from the thnving industry and commerce elsewhere in the state, Anandi has set up
gender resource centres with trained support workers drawn from the communily. This helps women from
marginahsed groups to advacate for and enforce their rights to land tenure, employment opporlunities, food for
their children and protection from violence

For the past 12 years our work in India has been ably led by Ajit Chaudhuri He has championed our approach of
helping effective community-based NGOs to respond to the needs of lhe most marginaiised people We will all
miss his Insight, tenacity and good humour We look forward to working with his successor Sachin Sachdeva who
jolns the Foundation in the summer .

| am grateful for the time and energy which all my fellow trustess bring to the Foundation In addition to their
working hives they all coniribute as trustees or advisors to other organisations operating in our flelds, giving them
an Informed and praclical understanding of the challenges these organisations face, and the needs and
opportunities of the people for whose benefit they exist Our trustees are often asked to take on important
responsibilities elsewhere This year both Anthony Salz and Tom Wylie ware appointed to key posts in
Education Anthony as the first senior non-executive membar of the Department for Education's Board, and Tom
as an advisor to the Education Salact Committee

Wae are pleased to be adding to our capacity at board fevel wath the introduction of a new trustee, Tony Hall Tony
15 one of most insplring leaders in the arts, and has championed trainlng and daevelopment, particularly of young
adulls, throughout his career

At the end of the year we will move into new offices. For many years 1t has been our hope to acquire a building as
a long-term home We have grown significantly in recent years, and the new offices will enable us to work more
effactively as a larger organisation, and to engage belter with visiting pariners, grantees and grant applicants

The location, in the King's Cross area of London, will maks us more accassible, and the new apace will allow us
to provide enhanced meeting facihiies to other chanties | am grateful to our Finance and Resourcaes Cirector
Lucy Palfreyman who managed a difficult transaction to purchase the bullding, and who with a small team 1s
oversesing a complex project to fit it out to meet our needs.

The succass of any arganisation depends on the people who work for it We are fortunate to have devefoped an
axcellent team of staff, consultants and advisors On behalf of all trustees | wish to thank them for what they have
achioved Howaever, as | have sald, ulimately the credit for delivering our mission must go to the many people we
support whose tireless work on the ground - currently amidst significant financial uncertainty — changes people's
lives

Jane Hamiyn

Fbily

JAVE HMAMUT W
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Director’s report

Dunng the year 2010/11, a great deal has been said and wnitten about the Government's Big Soclety We
walcome the emphasis placed on giving people greater power and influence over decisions and use of
rescurces, which is in ine with our belief in the value of participation Like many olhers, however, we have
questionead the lack of clarity on many specifics, the unhelpful speed of change, and the lack of support to build
ihe capacity of people In many sectors and paris of the country to take up the opportunities the Big Society may
offer This Is particularly apparent given the impac! of central and local government cuts to veluntary
organisations which have a crucial role in this area with their local communitles

While itis too early to identify fully the impact of changes to governmenl and local government funding regimes,
for many of the organisations we work wth, tha effect of policy dacisions during the year are clearly going to be
deeply felt inlo the coming years The responses of charities, schools and cultural instilutions to these changes
ara an area from which much may be learned

Our own response has been, where possible, to try to increase the capacily of organisations to adapt to new
realittes We have also made appropriata shifts of emphasis within our Speclal lmitiatives, most notably in Right
Here, our joint imbative with the Mental Heallh Foundation, which seeks to find better ways to improve the mental
haalth and resllience of 16-25 year olds The transfer of commissioning from Prnimary Care Trusts and other
changes in budgst-holding mean that the four local partnerships of voluntary and stalutory bodles with whom we
are jointly working nead to adapt their plans We have adapled {he level and type of support provided to them to
try to help them bensfit from the new approaches, despile the cuts in local funding

Alongside Right Here, we cantinued to operate nine other Special Initiatives this year Each is differentin
character, but their common features inclide carefully crafted formative evaluation and plans for dissemination of
the results of what does or does not work.

It 1s parttcularly heartening when other organisations decide to support directly our Initiatives This year intiatives
across all three of our UK programmes receiwved welcome endorsements, from organisations as diverse as the
Asts and Humanitles Research Gouncil, Creatiity, Culture and Education, the Cultural Learning Partnership,
Esmee Farbaim Foundation and Unbound Philanthropies We are grateful to their trustees and staff for their
commitment to our work

QOutside our Spacial Initiatives, it took us longer than we hoped to begin to implement our plans to better
understand the overall impact of aur work and to caplure more {earning from our porifolio of Open Grants A key
step towards this goal has baen the creation of a new post focusing on research, evaluation and learning We
ware delighted in April 2011 to welcome Jane Stesla as our first Head of Evaluaiton and Impact. Jane will work
closely with our grants staff to ensure that we all understand better the value of what we inibate and support, or
occaslonally undertake ourselves In addition to her work at PHF, Jana remains a trustee of the Camegie UK
Trust where she chaired the programme commiltee on Civil Soctety and Democracy

Wa also walcomed to the slaff Abigail Knipa and Safyia Juma, who both Joln the Education and Learning team,
and said goodbye to Julla Mirkin, who covered a maternity leave in the Arts team We wish Julia well as she
1akes up a new post at the Foyle Foundation We have continued with our communications internships, and thank
Richard Gooper and Bethan Staton for the work they did during thelr placements

Staffing 1s of course a key element, and a high proportion of the cost, of grant-making This year, at the
suggoston of our Remuneration Commiltee, we undertook our first staff salisfaction survey The overall results
ware posilive compared to other similar organisations We learnt however that there is more that wa can do to
develop our staff and to this end we have begun a senses of informal staff learning seminars, on issues so far
including pariicipation and the social delemminents of health Within a small organisation it is difficult to provide
sfructured career progression, but the onward destinations of departing staff reflact strong personal growth

In the pravious trustees report we reported on the results of the Grantee Perception Repert (GPR) and our plans
to increase the lavet of non-financlal support we provide Caonstraints on staff resources mean that some of our
plans to do this will not begin to aperate unbl 2011/12, However this year we have increased the lavel of support
wa give onlire to grantees with a new 'Grant holders’ section on our website, which signposts other available
online resources We have continued to promote the GPR to other foundations A presentation a{ the Assoclation
of Chantable Foundahons (ACF) annual conference led by our Communtcations Manager Dan Watson and
Travis Manzione from the Center for Effeclive Philanthropy about the benefits of the GPR was the best-attended,
and one of the best-received, sessions at the conference it has directly led lo another three UK foundations
declding to use the GPR in their wark, doubling the cohart of UK users We hope that others will ba stimulated to
use the GPR ar other robust survay tools to improve the quality and impact of thelr work
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One of the Foundation's strategic aims is 1o support the phlianthropic sector as a whote We mainly do this
through advice and other non-financial support. This year our Finance and Resources Director Lucy Palfreyman
was elecled to the board of the ACF Other colleagues regularty speak at traiming confarences and semimars on
philanthropy and fund-raising

The new Government has shown a keen interest In philanthropy, with recent policy niratives including
inheritance tax incentives far private giving, and the publication of the Giving Green Paper We were pleased to
note the Green Paper's applause for two recent developmants in phitanthropy of which PHF s a founder
supporter the Pennles Foundation and the Social Impact Bond

Less welcome, though, was the Green Paper's suggestion that endowed foundations should be compelled to
adopt a minimum payout Our response to the consultation pointed to evidence which shows that this might have
the perverse effact of reducing spanding, as well as cansiraining tha unique advantages enjoyed by foundations,
of flexibihty and independence Nevertheless, trustees have deciied to increase the leve! of our spending in
future. We have set ourselves the targel of spending around 4 per cenl of our total net agsets After allowing for
the costs of investment management, {his currenlly represents a target of £22m for the 2011742 financial year

This report details progress over the past year in each of our four programmes, as well as defailing plans for the
coming year We welcome feedback on its content, which can be sent through an anonymous online survey via
our website, www phf org uk The websile is the best source for updates on afl our work Please also consider
sigmng up 1o our quarterly newslelters or folltowing us on twilter at @phf_uk
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Arts Programme Report

This has been a year of change and uncertainty. The public funding landscape has shifted, New government
priorilies have emerged and public services are re-structunng, including the Department for Culture, Media and
Sport  Bodies such as the UK Film Council or the Museums Library and Archives Council have gona and naw
ones, such as Creative Scolland, have appeared The cultural Olympiad stary is also slowly unfolding

Like all organisations involved with the arts in the UK, we have followed closely the impaci of reduced funding
from ceniral government — whether through local authonties or through portfolio reviews in the various Arls
Councils Itis obvious that the effects of this funding shake-out and the start of a period of austerily will be feit for
some lime to come |l also looks ke some of these changes are here to stay

Most of the orgamisations that we suppaort have been affecied by the reviews of regularly funded organisations by
Arts Councils across the UK and the announcement of new National Portfolio Organisations [n England was one
of the important milestones of 2010/11. We were delighted to see that soms of our existing grantees became
core funded for the first time (including 20 Storles High, Inbetween Time Productions, People United & Streetwise
Opera) or had a significant upfift in their grants (such as the Arvan Foundallon, Firstsite, the Postry Soclety,
Punchdrunk & Wysing Arts Centre) This reflected the fact that the focus of our Arts Open Grants’' scheme on
both incremental innovation and impact on practice — and the aims of our Breakthrough Fund — had resonance in
the goals set out in ACE's ten year strategy, “Achiaving Great Art for Everyone™ However, we regret that many
granteas with whem we have a on-going relationship fared less well and will have to cope wilh reduced core
funding from 2012113 Wa alao hsliave that Dance United and Youth Dance England, two orgarusations we have
been close to for years and belleve In, should have been awardad Nakonal Porlfolio status as both do achteve a
lot In terms of sectoral impact.

The response to thase complicated and still evolving issues Is that organisations must be prepared to adapt and
think outstde the box. It 1s encouraging that, though our Open Grants' scheme, some applicants are already doing
this Others are re-focusing on core values and activities to consolidate their position We expect to sae
organisations restruciuring in the coming months.

In 2010/11, we observed a significant decline in the number of Initial applications tc the Arts Open Grants'
scheme This is in many ways unsurprising a renswed application process has tightened the focus for
applicants around our core criteria of innovation, participation and mpact It s also the case that, at imes of
crisls — like in 2007/08 at the start of the recession, for exampts — independent funders usually notice a drop m
the numbears of applications whilst arls organisations fire-fight to survive Many organigations spent months in
2010 on their core funding submissions to Arts Councils and did not get round to applying to us until after the end
of the financial year. However, alongside fewer first slage applicallons, we have also noticed an increase in the
numbsers of applicattons that we are taking forward to second stage: we are consequently rejecling more
applicalions al second stage than ever bafore

Reflecting on the balance of types of grant awards thal wa have made during 2010/11, we would welcome more
applications from outside London — particularly from Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland, for example — and
those which include an intergenerational element, particularly involving older people We are also keen 1o award
more ‘continuation’ funding grants to organisaltons with whom we are engaged in a successful relationship. The
need for this type of en-going support 1s particularly apparent i the current circumstancas and, as a number of
grants from made since our new Arts Open Grants guidelines were launched in 2008 draw to a close, there
should be opportunilies for us to extend our impact

The year has seen a number of imporlant developments in our Special initiatives, which are detailed furiher in the
following pages

Woe started work in eamest on ‘AriWarks Developing Practice in Parlicipatory Setlings’, after the Initiative was
approved in March 201C¢  Gulded by Dr Susanna Bums, the Projact Director and a Steering Group, five granis
have been approved by the Arts pregramme Committes to four pathfinder projects in Scotland, Wates, London,
the North East and to a fifth one working across the country with national umbrella bodies We look forward to
developing strong working relationships with these clusters of organisations
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On the museums and galleries side, an area where we have steadily daveloped a possible mitiative over the last
three years or so, we have commissioned a report based on the work of Dr Bernadette Lynch with 12 museums
and galleries across the UK We published a summary report taken from this work, titled 'Whose cake is it
anyway' to reflect a line from an improvised scene enacted by museum staff and community pariners The
metaphor is useful for descnbing the difficult balance of power between museums and their publics We have
also appointed Dr Piotr Bienkowski to tead the development of a proposal for a larger intervention in this area

Finally, we have undertaken reviews of both our Awards for Artists and of the Breakthrough Fund to help us
understand the impact of these Initiatives better and inform future decisions by Trustees

The Arts programme has as Ils aim to expand enjoyment and parlicipation In the arts This tast year there have
been Interesting responses — from individuals, arlists and organisations — to the uncertalnties and difficulties that
our sector Is facing Amongs! those, we supported the ‘Save the Arts' campaign prlor to the spending roview, and
also continued to fund and help steer the Cultural Learning Alliance, a collective voice and campaigning body
working to ensure that all children and young people have meaningful access to culture We beliave that the
Cullural Learning Alhance’s broad agenda in devising a national slrategy will contexiualise Darren Henley's
Reaview of Cultural Learning for the Department of Culture, Media and Sport and the Depariment for Education,
due by the end of the year

Special Initiatives

Awards for Artists
Support for individual artists

£408,340.99 m 2010/11

The Awards for Artists scheme helps individuals to develop their creative Ideas by providing 'no sirings’ funding
over three years Each of the elght recipients receives £45,000, paid in three instalments There are three
Awards for Composears and five Awards for Visual Arts The Awards are made on the basis of need, achievement
and lalent Nominators, changing each year, put forward names and a panel of judges selscts recipients

The 2010 reclplents were announced at a reception by Charloite Higgins, chlel arts writer at the Guardian, at the
Royal Instifute of Brilish Architects in November 2010 Her speeach, in which she spoke about the Impact of public
funding of the arts, can be watched on the PHF website

2010 Composers

David Fennessy, Anna Meredith, Jason Yarde

2010 Visual Arts

Angela de la Cruz, Luke Fowler, Christina Mackie, Ben Rivers, Lindsay Seers

The Foundation Is currently undertaking a review of the Awards for Artists scheme, with the aim of gaining a
clearer understanding about what impact recsiving an Award has had upon previous recipients, what othar
funding exists to support UK based visual artists and composars and whather the current structure, processas,
scale and focus of the scheme are right

*The Paul Hamlyn awards are an exampls of what phitanthropy can do at its best These awards give artists
something irreplaceable time and freedom "

Charlotte Higgins, 2010 Awards for Artists announcement receptlon keynote speech

“This award has come like magic, without any hype, and is an endorsement which has at its core the simple idea
of allowing an arlist to continue working in their own odd ways *

Ben Rivers, 2010 Awards for Visual Arts recipient
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Breakthrough Fund
Support for exceptional cullural entrepreneurs
£93,760 07 in 2010/11

The Breakthrough Fund was sei up in 2008 1o support exceptionat cultural entreprensurs with a compelling viston
and a strong track record of making things happen After three consecutive years of grant-making, 2010/11 was
the first tme that the 15 granis were all under way

While some of the relationships with grantees were just starting up, a number of others entered their final phase
the grants will complete batween April/May 2011 and ths latter part of 2015

During the year, we continued to engage with and support Breakihrough Fund grantees according to their needs.
this ranged from in-depth dialogue about cntical phases of dacision-making or considerable support wilh certain
1ssues or priorities, through to more familiar forms of annual reporting and shared reflection on progress and
challenges This openness of communication and ngour of self-evaluallon is matched by the flexibiliy and
supportive cammitment thal the Foundation offers through the Fund

Whilst there were no critena of geography, art form, ways of working, age or gender, we welcome the strang and
distinctive mix that has resulted from the nomination-based selection process Twenty different nominators each
year were invited to make confidential nonsnations of individuals, who could then put forward thelr vision for
support The Breakthrough Fund has been asked to offer widely varying forms of suppon, ranging from core
funding, R&D funding, project or programme development, and funding for specific new posts  The grants have
ranged from £83,000 to £360,000 over grant penods ranging from two to five years, with average suppor around
£250,000

Duning 2010/11, we hegan an extensive process of evaluation, drawing together all the grantees across the three
years [n 2011/12, we will be looking at the strategic role of the Fund in the current climate and at comparators in
the UK and inlernationally, and undertake the first of the avaluatlons with grantees who have completed their
grants An intenm assessment of the impact and outcomes of the Fund overall will be updated at regular
milestenas as further grants complete, with follow up evaluation for all grants 2 years after completion We will
share our findings at key stages as they emerge

ArtWorks: Developing Practice in Participatory Settings

An action-research pragramme supporting infrastructure development in arhists training and
development

£1,289,029.75 in 2010/11

In March 2010, Trustees agread funding of £1 47m to fund a new Special Inifiative seeking to explore and
develop participatery practices in the arls We are delighted ihal this attracted significant further funding from
Crealivity Culture and Education, the Arts and Humanittes Research Council and the Cuitural Leadership
Programme — bringing the total budgst for AriWorks lo over £2m

After a call for proposals from across the sector, grants totalling £1,173,838 were mada to five actlon-research
programmes in Wales, Scotland and England. The five ‘partnerships’ bring tagether arts organisations and
education institutions to develop new approaches to training and continuous profassional development in
participatory arts ArtWorks will support the selected partnerships to create belter infrastructure for arists who
facilitate this participatory work

Parftcipation m the arls Is a central prionty for the Arls Programme, which has as its goal to increase access to
and enjoyment of the alls This work 1s usually led by arllsts In every art form who work across a wide variety of
participatory setlings Cur research leading to the creation of this new tmliative highlighted the lack of initial
{raining for this work, a disparity in traming and development across the art forms; issues around perception of
value and quality; and disjointed provision across thae UK The aim of the ArtWorks initiative 1s to identify best
practicas n this fleld and contnbute to raising standards, as well as raising prestige




Paul Hamlyn Foundatlon Trustee Report and Financial Statements 2010/11

Or Susanne Burns was appointed as Project Director in July 2010 and will fead the programme's development
and implementation, working closely with the appointed evaluation team who are based at the Universily of
Newcastle-upan-Tyne

Museums and Galleries
On-going research and development of a potential new special initiative

£44,126.94 \n 2010/11

Work conlinued throughout 2010/11 on daveloping an intervention arcund community engagement in the
museums and galleries seclor

Dr Bernadette Lynch led research with 12 museums and gallenes across the UK, together with thelr communily
partners, lo gauge the real nature and effecliveness of their engagement practices A confidentlal procaess built
trust, allowing professionats and communily partners to open up courageously to dialogue and debate, and for
very frank views to be exchanged and examined coltaboratively Dr Lynch’s summary report has been published
and can be read on the PHF wabaite

Building on the findings of the report, Dr Piotr Bienkowskl was appointed in January 2010 to develop a proposal
for a new Special Imtiative 1n this area, aimed at facilitating a process of development and organisational change
within museums and gailaries that are committed to active partnership with their communities Trustees will
declde in the summer of 2011 whether 1o approve this Inilative
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Ecducation and Learning Programme Report

The past year has seen a number of challenges emerging throughout education in the UK, several of which
impact directly on areas of focus for the Education and Learning programme

Learning outside the classroom faces serious problems as schoots worry about the cosis of taking children into
new setlings aganst budgetary constraints This 1s compounded by the difficultes faced by resource centras for
learning outside the classroom, some of which also face closure Through our Learning Away Special Iniliative,
which works with schools to improve the qualily of residential education and tap the huge potential of residential
axperiences to deliver curricutum-based teaching and learning, we have seen the great benefils that tearning
outside of the classroom can bring

Likewlse, it is becoming more difficult for schools and community groups to support supplementary schools
Supplementary Education, a theme of our Open Grants scheme, has the potential for significant impact on young
people’s learning, as well as benefits for communilles Some of this impact can be seen in the Black Families
Education Support Group case study in this yearbook — a particularly strong example of much of the good work
that can take place atongside conventlonal schooling

A further major area of concern for us is the threat to music in schools. Music departments risk baing closed
since there is no requirement for music in the new English Baccalaureate This probtem 13 compounded In higher
educalion, whare three or four universilles with a music speclallsm in teacher tralning are facing closure Qur
Musical Futures programme, which has achieved significant impact in schools i England, has shown what it is
possible to achisvae through music education. We are now seeking to expand participation of schools in the
initiative to reach Scolland, Walas and Norlhem Ireland, but nationally the pleture Is uncertain as some music
departments in echools may see reduced capacity or close.

Universily feas are clearly also a significant concern The rising cost of universily education presents polential
challenges to access for many young people This sltuation reinforces the pertinence of our "What Works'
Initiative, which is tooking at the factors influencing retention and academic success for students The initiative
saeks to find the best ways for universities and higher educalion Institutions to prevent young psople from
dropping out of education

Programme principles

The context in which many of the organisations we support are working has informed our thinking on the
development of the Education and Learning programme Wae have this year formulated a set of unilying principles
that undermpln our work across Open Grants and Speclal Initiatives,

Among theso are a wish fo increase the breadth of young people’s education so that they can develop a range of
skills, qualities and knowledge they will need for the future. The Speaking and Listaning theme of our Open
Grants scheme has stimilated a large volume of work to this end that would not otherwise have taken place.
MNew aclivities, such as the Geography Assoclation grant featured in the Open Grants seclion, are developing
new rasources for both teachers and informal education practitioners. Our Leaming Away Special Iniliative has
also played a role In developing personal skifls and aplitudes in participating students

Other key principles underpinning the programme’s work are participalion and a focus on lifelong learning. As
with tha work of all the Foundation's UK programmes, participation lies at the heart of what we are doing — it is
vital in the work we suppor that learners are active agenls In shaping thelr own learning experlences. This helps
learners to engage and can contribute towards young people learning ‘how to learn’ and being able to continue
their learning after the end of thelr formal education The Learning Futures Special Iniliative has been particularly
significant in developing student-led learning approaches, and in our Open Grants, the Browsers project run by
the Glasgow Soulh East Regeneration Agency Is an example of how children at risk of exclusion can learn to
embrace loarning

Another area of interest is to explore ways in which the different elements of the education system can fit
together belter Focusing on smoother linkages between supplementary and maknstream education (through our
Supplementary Schools Open Grants theme) or between different stages of the education system (through the
focus on transition from primary to secondary school in our Musical Bndges Transforming Transitton Special
Initiative) will help to provide a more holistic education and pravent the squandanng of potential at imes of
change in young people’s lives
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Full details of the pnnciples framewark of the programme are online in the Education and Learning seclion of the
PHF website

Development of thinking

Much of our {hunking around 1ssues like breadth, creativily, participation and coherence has emarged from our
Speciat Initlatives  Running five such inillatives is demanding on a small team but the breadth of their work,
across so many parts of the educalion system — from pnmary school through to universily and from specific
music-based inifiatives into the wider curriculum — means that there are some valuable lessons that can be drawn
from them

For example, through Learning Futures, we have developed a framework through which it 18 possible for schools
to achieve this focus on engagement and benefit from its transformational effect upon learning. Learning Futures
iiself owes much to our earlier Musical Futures imtiative, which saw the successful implementation of informal
learning The impact of this project on schools in England, over several years, has been significant — and feft
bayond the music room as the improved learner engagement achieved through the teaching and learning
techniquas developed in Musicel Fulures have been shown to effact pupils’ performance In other areas

QOur Open Grants scheme operatas atong three themes. This year we have mads more granis under the
Speaking and Listening theme, reflecting stronger, more impactful and innovative proposals, than under the other
Open Grants ihemes of Supplementary Educalion and Truancy and Exclusion We have also been disappointed
to recsive very faew applications from outside of &England

We would therefore welcome In the coming year more applications under the other themes, and from other parts
of the UK For our part, we anticipate issuing more fecused cails for applications over the coming year, to ry to
reach more organisations that could bensfit from our support

The Education and Learning team has been bolstered this year wilh the appaintment of Jennifer Izekor as a new
advisor We are grateful to Tracy Sacks and Jo Dale for their work covering the post of Special Initialives
Coordinator during Vickl Sefby’s maternily leave, and we are pleased lo welcome Abigall Knipe as Grants
Asslstant and Saflya Juma as Specia! Initlatives Adminlstrator

Special Initiatives

Musical Futures

Supporting innovation in school music education
£189,912.75 in 2010/11

Musical Fulures has been runming in schools for seven years now and has developed an approach to music
teaching and learning that is followed in more than a third of English secondary schools. This approach aims to
sustaln engagement and participation in young people’s music making by providing a range of sirategles that
make music learning relevant, realistic and enjoyable for young people Musical Fufures is a new way of thinking
about music making in schools lhat brings non-formal teaching and informal learming approaches into the more
formal context of schools

The viston that guides the current phase of the indiative (to July 2012) 1s for Musical Futures to become
embedded into at least half of secondary schools in England, for these schools, teachers, praclitioners to fael
supported and confident, and for Musical Futures to form a crucial, long-term part of music education policy and
praclice

Work during 2010/41 has focused on further embedding Musical Futures techniques into practice through a
range of activlies Highlights include the launch of our ‘Young Champicns' programme, engaging students as
online mentors for other Musical Fulures participants, increased input to initial teacher training coursss, the
continuing development of our CPD offers for teachars, delivered by our Champlon Schools and the davalopment
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of a cross-phase project to help bulld on successful naticnal programmes for music participation at primary lavel
and create links to Musical Fulures work at secondary schools The project, based on the |ggy Pop song "The
Passengar’ 1s designed to be accassible to non-speclalist primary school teachers as well as specialist secondary
musle teachers, and can be used In schools with different levels of music facilities

We have also developed a film to encapsulale Musical Futures approaches and demonstrate its impact for
teachers considering its use, or encountering it in thelr teacher traming and are contribuling to an Qlympics
themed project led by the Youth Sports Trust, defivering Musical Fulures workshops alongside Olympic athletes

Over the coming year we will also be contributing, alongside the Specialist Schools and Academies Trust and
other pariners, to a new natlonwide music competition for young people and piloting Musical Futures in Wales,
Scotland and Northern Ireland

Learning Away
Achieving more through school residentlals

£83,492.33 in 2010111

Leaming Away supporis schools across the UK to enhance young people's learning, achlevement and wellbeing
by using residentlal experlences as an integral pari of the curriculum We want to achleve significant shifts,
nationwide, in schools’' commitment to high qualily residential learning experlences for their pupils

This year we have developed the infrastructure of the initiative by appointing as project leader, Pater Cams,
previously national champion for Learning Qutside the Classroom, creating an online forum and orgamsing
naticnal events for the 13 cluster schools 1n our communily of practice in order to share and improve practice

Around 2000 children and young psople from the 81 schools acting as our Learming Away pilots, participated in
residentials this year Each cluster has a different focus, including curnculum development, communily cohesion
and incluston, muiti-agency and family support work, facilitating studan transition, working with parents,
improving grades and student leadership

Qur evaluators from the Ceantre for the Use of Research and Evidence in Educafion (CUREE) saw slgnificant
progress in many clusters and evidence of

+ Positive changes in students' alliludes to learning and mofivation

* Increases in young people's independence and active engagement and participation
+ Enhancad welibsing and improved relationships

+ Deavslopment of skilis in leadership, thinking and empathy

We alm to embad residential tearning experlsnces into school hfe so that they become integral to the currcutum
and wider cullure By demonslirating the powerful iImpact residential learning can have on a wide range of
outcomes for young people, including altendance, aspiration, achievement and cahesion we hope to Inspire other
schools and policy makers to racognise residential learning as a highly effective means of fostering leamer
engagement and success

“{He] was close to exclusion even though he is only Year 2 He was in my office three times a week for
disciplinary reasons Now he comes to see me at leas! once a week to show me his 'excellent work’ badges He
has complelely re-engaged with leaming *

A teacher from Newall Green High Scheol, descnbing the impact of the school's residential leaming programme
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Learning Futures

Supporting innovation in school music education
£475,586.50 in 2010/11

Achieving deepar leamer engagement such thal learners become anthusiastic awners of therr learning, and
giving them vital ‘24" cenltury skills', such as collaboration, information literacy and adaptability, are major drivers
for change within the education system

Learning Futures has been working closely with seven schoals to develop new approaches for developing deeper
learner engagement. For us deep engagement is something much more than compliance in the classroom and a
concapt thal has relevance not just for those who are visibly disengaged, but also chiidren and young paople who
passively withdraw from thelr education, and those who could ke characterised as disengaged achlevers — those
who perform well academically, keep out of trouble, but reject further and higher education and opportunities for
Ifetong learning

Woe have produced a furlher publication this year examining learner engagement: ‘The Engaging School
Principles and Practice’, and are working closely with partner schools to develop a comprehensive set of
materlals and tools to gulde and aid schools more widely in implementing change to build better engagemsnt

The iniliative bansfited from a visit in March 2010 to the group of High Tech High schools in San Diego, which are
internationally recognised for their expertise In project-based learning approaches A group of teachers from High
Tech High wiil be making a return visit 1o work tn the Learning Futures schools and help strengthen their
pedagaogical approaches.

Thae initlativa will end at the end of 2011 and work Is going into secunng lts legacy, including a redeveloped
website and work to increase lhe reach of the research and resources developed |Learning Futures has altracted
altention from around the world and will be taken over by the Innovation Unit, which has partnered PHF n the
development of tha iniliative

What Works? Student retention and success
Supporting and retaining students in higher education
£567,147.64 in 2010/11

QOver a three year period (2008-2011), we have been genarating robust evidence to help universilies learn how
best to ensure ligh student continuation and complstion rates, particularly for students from disadvantaged
backgrounds The initiative aims to build understanding through evaluation and fransfer knowledge about
effactive practice, rather than to fund retantion interventions or their development directly.

Working with seven clusters of higher education institutions {22 HEIs in all) we have found that the key to
achleving higher student retention rates lies In enhancing student engagement n their higher educatlon
experience While not a surprising result, the depth of understanding created by the initiative provides insights
into how student engagement can be enhanced throughout the student hfecycle and across the academic, soclal
and professional service spheras of the inslitution The evidence from the inillative Is that significant institutronal
transformation Is often required to achieve the requisite level of structural and cultural change to achlsve this

Work this year has focusad on completing the evaluation work across ihe seven clusters with a view to
synthestsing the leaming and findings for wider disseminaticn over the coming year in the light of forthcoming
higher uition fees for students, the need for HEIs to ensure strong student engagement to increase student
retention and success, will become an evan greater mperative Locking ahead, we will need to ensure that the
evidence and recommendations from our work is presented In such a way as to ensure its receplion and ready
utilisation by institutions more widely to help them strengthen change their practices to ensure student ratention

The What Works? inttiative 1s joinlly funded by the Higher Education Funding Council for England
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Musical Bridges: Transforming Transition
Addressing disconnects betwaen primary and secondary music aducation

£4100,083.69 in 2010/11

In its first full year of operation, Musical Bridges has embarked upon a range of actlivities to improve the process
of transition between primary and secondary school and minimise its negative Impact on children’s musical
education

The iniiative has developed several key strands of aclivily, including ewidence gathering and research {o befter
understand current practice, an innovative cross-phase teacher professional development programme and the
development of an audiling teol to help schools assess their praclice

A cross-seclor survey brought fogether views from pnmary and secondary schools, music services and other
music education providers, culminating in the "Sound Tracks' report, which can be read on the PHF website The
report emphasised many of the problems of transition and identified a healthy appsetite among primary and
secondary teachers for working togethar and shanng pedagogies

The teacher development programme, developed in parinership with Trimity Guildhall and the Open University, Is
currently being piloted with around thirty schools in three [ocations across the country

A longiludinal survey 1s also underway, fracking the experiences of a cohort of children as they make the
transition from the final years of Kay Stage 2 in to {he first years of Key Stage 3 An intenm report ‘Changing
Key', avallable from lhe PHF website, provides evidence of some of the disconnects between primary and
secondary music education

The imporlance of transikion to a child's musical development was noted by the Henley Review of Music
Education Musical Bridges was recognised for ifs work (n thls area and we will be working to influence the
Nalional Pian for Music Education that the Department for Education has promised and the development of
regional music hubs A priorily for the year ahead will be the scale up of improved praclice particularly through
working with the new regional hubs and to raise awareness more widely of the problams often associated with
transitlon to stimulate furthar breakthroughs in practice across the country to enhance pupils’ experlence
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Social Justice Programme Report

The Social Justice programme works with organisatlons from a range of sectors that work with young people
facing difficullies Often they are in a vulnerable, margnalised paosilion, or going through a period of transifion
dunng which they are parlicularly at risk of experiencing hardship or losing their way in bife. The context in which
the organisations we support work has been dominated by two key factors during 2010/11 The flrst is increased
financtal hardship due to recession and a sluggish economy ylelding fewer opportunities, espectally for
marginatised groups and young people The second is a reduction in state spending on services to suppor these
groups

The consequences of these changes are that many organisations, and the young people with whom they work,
may face several years of increased risk and uncertainty. Through our grant-making we have sought to respond
to thesa factors in a8 number of ways

Woe have made grants to organisations pursuing means of responding to need that we think are showing
particular promise in engaging with and assisting the most marginalised This includes support for different ways
of scaling up innovaltive work proven to be effective, such as assisting Place2Be to secure and buld on its
success in ambedding mental health support for young people in schools, and in helping Onside to involve
disabled young people in the devalopment of new youth zones towns across the MNorth West of England

Wae have also supported some organisalions that are concernad with the development and effectivenass of their
sector as a whole There is a wider dabate around whether support is most effectively made when the reciplents
are "on the ground’, ‘end-users' of support, or whether nurtunng smaller, localised, specialised fundars to be more
effeclive and strategic will have a magnified impact further downstream. Our support for Clinks (1) and the Law
Centres Federation, both of which are concerned with developing olher organisations in their sectors, reflects our
view that we beliave that these lypes of organisation will be increasingly important In the years ahead

Leveraging funds and value

Responding directly to the simple reduction in manay in the system, we took part in the Sodlal Impact Bonds
scheme - an innovative programme that promisas to leverage more money from investors to go towards public
benefit by offering a financial pay-off based on the success of a soclal enterprise The first of its kind in the UK,
the schema we invested in aims to prevent reoffending among prisoners leaving HMP Peterborough Moniles
from the bonds are used to fund experienced third sector organisations such as YMCA, Orriston Trust and St
Giles Trust. The scheme concentrates on prisoners compleling short jail sentences because of their particularly
high re-offending rates

A further logical step 1s to aeak greater valua from the reduced funds in the system, and with that goal in mind we
have supported organisations seeking to provide services online — a potentially more cost-effective channel for
provision, and one that recognises the importance of reaching young people in the places (real or virual) where
they spend thelr time This year for instance we have made a grant to YouthNst for development of TheSite.org,
which provides online support on a range of issues to young pecple across the UK

While the third sector as a whole is facing challenges we also want to focus on opportunities for the development,
and we hava done this through support for third sector leadership. We are conslstently impressed by the many
young leaders we come across through our grant making and we often saek within grants to ald their
development Our grant to the Young Foundation’s Uprising programms, and our continued support for the Clore
Social Leadership Programme stem from this approach

Help at the margins

Our Speclal lniiafives are fong term, sustained interventions in areas of particular concern The Social Justice
programime currently operates two Speaial Initiatives — the Right Here mental health iniiiative, run jointly with the
Menta! Health Foundation, and a new imiiative in support of young undocumented migrants

Against the backdrop descnbed, the ongoing work of Right Here Is more relevant than ever There is a strong
prospect of young people experlencing a grealer lovel of emotional distress dus to the addilional hardships many
are facing Also, new funding arrangements at local authonty level, which have endangered some of the
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organisations involved in Right Here, make it more necessary to explore new collaborative working practices to
deliver more effective local support Findings are beginning to emerge from the four partnerships we have
funded, in particular about the impact and vaiue of young people’s participation In the shaping of work.

Following on from our report ‘No Right to Dream’, which locked at the lives of young undocumented migrants in
England, we have developed a new Special Inifialive given over to this area. The young people our researchers
met in compiling thelr report, and many others like them, will expenence many of the same problems and issues
as their Bntish peers, such as unemployment, homelessness, exploitation, financial hardship, emotional disiress
and health problems The cntical difference 1s that aven with services being eroded, the latter can access lhe
he!p that 1s available to them wilhout fear of getling into trouble The undocumented are oflen unable to do this,
and so rnisk spiralling into destilution and hardship — invisible from support agencles

Qur new Special Inthative, the Supported Options Fund, will work to find mmnovative ways of ansunng that young
peopla in this predicament are not abandoned without information and support — but instead are able to access
trusted, independent and rellable advice that helps them address issues around thelr stalus, and access support
to stabilise their precarious lives

Grant-making priorittes

As the two Special Initiatives exemplify, our programme prioritles are to support young people at difficult imes of
transition Transition can present particular problems for those with fewest material resources, social natworks,
skills and expernience OQur view 1s that an effective interveniton eady on in a pariod of trouble for a young person
can help prevent their problems becoming multiple and complex

We also seek to build understanding between groups, on the basis that prejudice and misunderstanding often
blights the lives of the mos! vulnerable young people, and denies them the opportunities and support many
others take for granted

We will continue to welcoms applications with these aims However In the coming year we will also be reopening
the grants scheme to fund work relating to criminal justice We had stopped funding mest applications relating to
criminal justice, pending a review of our funding in this area (although we did support some particularly strategic
grants during this ime) On the strength of this review and ongoing mvolvement wilh the Corston Independent
Funders’ Coallion, which Is concerned with women and girls in the criminal justice system, we will be taking
forward plans to develop a theme within cur Open Grants scheme and a Speclal Initlative The PHF website will
contain all relevant new information as it Ia confirmed

Wa are fortunate in our work to benefit from the experlise of our commilles of trustees and advisors. The make-
up of the Soclal Justice commiltes has altered slightly this year with Anthony Salz stepping down (though
remalining a trustes) due to new responsibililies on the board of the Department for Education Tim Buniing has
Joined the Soclal Justice Commitiee in his place and ws are glad to be benefilting from the business perspachve
he brings

Special Initiatives

Right Here
Mental Health Special Initiative Iin partnership with the Mental Health Foundation
£220,364.90 in 2010/11

Right Here is a £6m initiative run fointly wath the Mental Heatth Foundation to radically change how we look after
the mental health and wellbaing of young people aged 16-25 across the UK By intervening early — before mentali
health problems become deep-rooted — the aim is to reduce the nsk of young people's lives being damaged in
the long term

Following an officsal launch of the four projects ~ based in Bnghton and Hove, Newham in East London, Sheffield
and Fermanagh, Norlhern Irefand — durmg summer 2010, each project has a lead organisation which Is targeting
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specific groups of local young people All the projects are also working universally with young peaopla in their
areas lo promote goecd mental health

+ Right Here Brighton and Hove, led by Sussex Ceniral YMCA, Is aiming to work with young people who
are [aolated (Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender young people and those estranged from their
families), msecure (homeless or insecurely housed), bullied {(and those wheo bully), or traumatised
(refugees and asylum seakers and those who have experlencad domestic violence)

« Right Here Newham, lad by New Cholces for Youlh Trust, is working with BAME (Black, Asian and
Minonty Ethnic) men and women

+ Right Here Sheffiald, led by Sheffield YMCA, is largeting young people who are not in education,
employment or fraining, long-term unemployed young adults, teenage/young parents, and BME young
people

*  Right Here Farmanagh, led by Youth Action Northern Ilreland, has young people from disadvantaged
communities, young parents, LGBT young people and young people from new ethmc communitres
amongst its target groups

Each local partnership has developed new ways of providing support to those aged 16-25, and discovering what
works so that methods can be replicated nationally to bnng about large-scale change

The role of young people in the shaping of the work is an important feature of the initiative Through their
membership of Right Here youth panels, young people are involved in raising mental health awareness locally
and play a part In the governance and delivery of each project, they are involved at every stage and at every lavel
of Right Here This focus on participation has yielded some notable findings on the practice of parlicipation.
Lessons ware shared with staff from across the Foundation's programmaes in a seminar at PHF's offices in March
2011

The initiative 1s subject to an ongolng evaluation by the Tawistock institute, the first report of which was published
in June 2011

For further details see www right-here org uk
Supported Options Fund
Support for young undocumented migrants

£7.400 in 2010/11 and £4,390.26 under Young Undocumented Migrants

This year PHF trustees agreed to astablish a Supported Options Fund for young migrants who bacome
‘undocumented’ During the coming year, we will launch this fund which will am to help organisations find innovative
ways of empowering young people who, for various reasons, find themselves undocumanied and unable to access
help, advice and suppori to address therr problems

Some of the stones of young people In this position were brought out by researchers at City University and University
of Oxford in ‘No Right to Dream’, research which we commissioned to deepen our understanding of these young
people’s lives

Many of these young people find thamselves in this predicament through no fault of their own, and those who cannot
readily return home face futures of uncertainty and anxiety and vuinerability fo problems such as deshitution, criminat
exploitation, poverly and poor physical and mental healih Cntically, there are virtually no trusted and relizble means
at prasent through which these young people are able to get mformation they need on their rights, entittements and
options, sa they can reach sensible decislons for themselves about their futures, and be supported In implementing
them.

The number of young undocumenied migrants in the UK 1s unlikely to diminish significanlly, despite legislative and
rule changes, since they have roots in global sccial and economic developments

Our hope is that through the Fund, children and young people will be able to move their lives on — either by

regularising their status, seeking advice, information and assistance to deal with immadiate problems, or giving them
a clearer sense of the (mited) options they face, and how they might pursue them
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India report

Over the cousse of 2010/11 the India Programme has supported 23 different sacial devetopment iniliatives with
18 different NGOs across the country These were spread across development sectors in keeping with our
philosophy of belng open to supporting diferent lypes of activily, with most projects falling within the broad
headlines of governance, education, health, and working against violence against women We are particutarly
pleased that we are supporiing Interesting projecls in India's poorest (and most difficuit) eastern region, where we
expact our presence to grow in the future

Our efforts to move beyond project support and work with our NGO partners in improving governance and
financial systems have led 1o the articulation of a set of expected standards We have foilowed this up with a
system of financial and governance audis, and have iried to walk the line between bsing exacting and being
intrusive We have combined this with suppont specifically for building capacity within our NGO partners —
including support to organisalion heads to atlend management courses and update themselves on current
thinking on governance, transparency, and accountabilily

Staff from our Delhl office frequently travel to grantee orgamsations, as do consultants covering the Easlt and
Waest of Incha However a larger delegation, including trustees Jane Hamlyn and Tim Bunting, and Director
Robert Dufton, visited Gujarat on 8-10 March 2011 and cefebrated Women's Day with our NGO partner Anandl
and over 1000 tribal women from local districts. This provided a first-hand wview of lhe negoliations nvolved with
the state to ensure that statutory entittements are delivered to marginalised communities

Coinciding with the appoiniment of a new Director for india, wa are in the precess of reviewang the India
Programme’s performance over the past five years, and also looking at social development gaps in the India of
the future and how we can best support Indian NGOs in addressing them A report is expected to be tabled for
discussion In September 2011

Note from Ajit Chaudhuri, Director - India

I joined Paul Hamiyn Foundation In April 1889, and | move on in May 2011 In this time, India has changed
considarably, as has PHF and the rest of the world | am forlunate to have seen this change from many remote
and underdeveloped backwalars within Indla and from the bright hghts of New Dethi and Lendon — both physical
change and change in development thinking.

The most important change in thinking has tean the realisation that NGOs are not the ullimate answer to the
problems of the poor In India It is only ihe slate that has the resources, the mandate, and the reach and scale to
bring about sustained social development. The India Programme has tried to work to support actwities that
sirengthen government development schemes, addressing gaps in them, and enabling poorer and more remots
communities to access them This has led to outcomes that are not directly aitributable to our support, but are
stronger and (we expect) will last longer We have also invested In activilies that build the capacily of NGOs to be
a link between the state and its most impoverished cilizens, and to link thair aspiretions to development policy
And, perhaps most importantly, we have recognised opportunities afforded by the 73" and 74" Constilution
Amendments that devolve authanty and responsibility for social development to local poldical institutions at
village and municlpal levels

As a development-funding agency, are we right to support the process of democratic decentralisation in India? Or
is this likely to teave the people we look to benefi, the very poorest, the most marginalised, worse off? | leave to
study the hink between devolution of power and social devalopment in India, an interest thal has developed over
the past three years In my work with PHF

And | would ke to thank everyone for a wonderful 12 plus years
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Reference and administrative details
and audit report

The annual report (which comprises pages 1 — 43 and the list of trustess, staff and advisers) and financial
statements are prepared on a combined basis for

s The Paul Hamilyn (1987) Foundation (the Trust} established on 15 Apnil 1987 by Trust Deed which has
been amended in subsequent years Registered charity number 327474,

+ Paul Hamlyn Foundation (the Company), formed on 3 February 2004 as a charilable company limited by
guarantee and not having a share capital Company number 5042279 (registered in England and
Wales) and registered charily number 1102927

On 8 May 2004, the Trustess of the Trust transferred the activities and the majority of the assets of the Trust lo
the Company A further fransfer took place in 2010/11 On 31 March 2011 the assets of the Trust stood at
£10 7m and these are included within the financial statements shown on pages 34 to 43

The principal office of both the Trust and tho Company is 18 Queen Anne's Gate, London, SW1H 8AA, which is
algo the registered office of the Company

Structure, governance and management

The Board of Trustees, comprising not less than three and not more than eleven members, meets at least four
times a year to agrea the broad strategy and areas of activity of the Foundation, including consideration of grant-
making, investment, reserves and risk managemeni policies and performance The Board considers grant
applicalions above £150,000

The principal commiltees, which all report to the Board of Trustees, are

e  Ans, Education and Learning, India and Social Justice Programme Commiltees (each comprising three
trustees and up to four external advisory members) mest at least quarterly to consider applications up to
£150,000 Decislons on applications to the UX programmes up to £10,000 may also be taken by staff
commiltees and are reported through the Programme Commiltae to the Board of Trustees

s Finance and Invesiment Commiltee, comprising five trustees and two external advisory members,
meels quarterly to consider investment strategy, manager appointment and performance, and twice a
year to consider financial matters

s Remuneration Committee, comprising the Chair and the Chairman of the Finance and Invesiment
Commiltee and two other rustees, meels at lsast once a year

The day lo day management of the Foundation is delegated by the Board of Trustees to the Director

The Board keeps the skill requirements for Trustees under review The Trustees create a long list of
appropnate people to meet identified gaps A sub-commtee interviews a shorllist of candidates Trustees
are initially appointed only until the next AGM by the Appointor provided for in the Articles of Association

The renewal of appoiniments (for a period of up to three years) is made by alli trustees acting as members of
tha company The current Appontor is Jane Hamlyn, who was designated so under Paul Hamlyn's will The
induction process for any newly appointed trustee comprises a meeting with the Charr, and meeting(s) with
the Director and ofher slaff, together wilh receipl of a pack contaming coples of the Memorandum and
Articles of Assaclation, the annual report and accounts, board and committee minutes and Chanty
Commission guidance notes

Trustees have identified and consldered the major strategic, operational and financlal risks to which the
Foundation is exposed They are satisfied with the procedures which have been established to review these
risks regularly, and with the actions taken to miligate exposure to them

Trustees have considered the Chanty Commission’s guidance on public benefit and confirm their view that
the Foundation's objects and aims as set out on page 1 are in alignment with the public benefit requirements
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of the 2008 Chanties Act The Trustees Report on pages 1 to 33 demonstrates the aclivities of the
Foundation and how they meet the Prnciples as defined in the Act,

Statement of trustees’ responsibilities

The trustees (who are also diectors of the Paul Hamlyn Foundation for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance wilh applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice)

Company law requires the frustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and
falr view of the stato of affairs of the chanitable company and of the incoming resources and application of
resources, including the income and expenditure, of the chantable company for thal period. In preparing these
financial statements, the trustees are required to

Select sutable accounting policies and apply them consistently,

Ohserve the mathods and principles in the Charitles SORP,

Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

State whether applicable UK Accounling Standards have been followed, subject to any materat
depariures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

+ Prepare lhe financial staltemenis on the going concern basis unless It is inappropriate to presume that
the chantable company will continue In business.

. 5 & &

The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2008 They are alsc responsible for safaguarding the assets of the chantable
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other regularilies

In so far as the trustees are aware’

*  There is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware, and
e The trustees have taken all stepa that they ought to have laken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corperate and financial information included

on the charitable company's website Legislation in the United Kingdem governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of the Paul Hamlyn
Foundation

We have audiled the financial statements of the Paul Hamiyn Foundation for the year ended 31 March 2011,
which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and the
related notes The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in ther preparation 1s applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice).

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditors

As explained mare fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement set out on page 28, the trustees (who are also
the diractors of the chantable company for the purposes of company law) are responsibie for the preparation of
the financlat statements and for being salisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financlal statements in accordance with applicable
law and Internatlonal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Praclices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the charity’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, In giving
ihese oplnions, accept or assume responsibliily for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wriling

Scope of the audit of the financlal statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence ahout the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the charitable
company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of
sigmficant accounting estimates made by the trustees; and the overall presentation of the financial statements

In addition, we read all ihe financial and non-financial information in the annual report lo idenhfy material
inconsistenctes with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent materia!
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinien on financial statements

In our opinion the financial stataments,
* give a truo and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of ifs
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure and cash flows,
for the year then ended,;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006.

Opinlon on other matter proscribed by the Companles Act 2006

In our opinion the Information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report for the financlal year for
which the financial statements are prepared is conslstent with the financial statements
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Woe have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Cempames Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, In our opinion

« adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
relurns, or

+ cerlain disclosures of trustees’ remuneraflon specified by law are not made, or

+ woe have not recaived all the Information and explanations we require for cur audit

lan Dixon (Senior Statutery Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhoussCoopers LLP
Chartered Accounlants and Statutory Auditors
Londaon

5 July 2011
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Bi caluhrough Fund
Museum of East Angllan Lile

Punchdiunk

Muscums and Galleries

Jane Attenborough Dance
in Education (JADE)}

Special initiative total

Open Grants
20 Storles High

Anjati Dance Company
Arts Services Granty (1d

ASF Shatland
Baltlc Flour Mifls Visuat Arts Trust

Bambastic Lid

British Ceramics Blennisl

Camchen Arts Condro

Capsule
Cheltenham Festivals
Children's Discovary Centre

Clore Dullle!d Foundation

Clore Cultura! Leadership P

Additlonal Breakthough Fund slfocation to consolidate the ‘Happiness in Heritago and Arty' £46,000.00
grant awarded In 2009

Additionat for org d £20000.0C

Support cosls £17,76007

£93,76007

L= ]

Support costs - h and devalop costs [or p 13l new special initlative £44,126 94

Support costs - Symposium costs £8.36052

£1,843,626.34

—_———————

To undespin the sataries of both the Administrator/General Manager and the Participation £43,750.00

Coordinator

To halp paopla with learning dissbilties Lake the (ead £40,500.00

To support naw collaborative spproaches ta creatae learaing through a three-year £25,000 00

programme of project based co learalng and prof, | cavel for teachers, artins

and young peopls

Athiee yesr fng davelop p for locat makers, students and amateur £43,000.00

YRavers, prising provision of texliles support, access to equlp at ASF Shetland and

tralping prograrnmes In textites

Core luppon undlrptnnlng & training and development programema for stafl, including £100,000.00
dh Initiatives and a cultural exchanga prograrvne across other

contamporary crlwemm

Support towards » naw piece of dance theatre for 7-11 year oids, integrating anlmation and £15,000.00

new techno'ogles and extending beyond the stage 15 tchocls and homet through workshops,
[iva streaming In school hours and a comptlar game

To underpin the development of tha British Caramic Blannlal's Communily and Education £84,000 00
Programme, by providing funding for a Co-ordinator post and an alement of praject costs.
Tha programme will Inctude a serles of public events snd (hiee commissions developed in

b withlocal
Resaarch and faasibility study to explore hovi ‘Gat the Message', an astist led programme £8,150C0
working with young people with learning &ifficuilies, can be developed and extended

Organlsalional support for two years to eniure successiul deitvery of Home of Motadl snd £60,000.00
Sup: e In 2011, Including davalop oluftnvurplan

Touyndsrpina p of audt d: Initlatives and e Scb £2,500 00
Fasttval tudltn:ono altend the musle 1u\ml

A pilot using storytellers and writeis o introduca storyteliing technlques to teacherss as a way £55,000 00
of developing children®s writing skifly

To commission Independent research to {idate the existing body of avid: for £10 000 00

cultural learning, aggregating findings on Impacts, outcomes and bast practice

a4

Curva (Lelcester Theatre Trust}

Tho Campalgn for Orawing

Feila an Phabsll

Favared Slaep
IKON Gallery

Tho James Mentles Kitehin Memotisl Trust

Lottolab Studle

Lyric Theatre Hammercmith Ltd

st Individuals within organisations or working [reelance who show a sirong £60,000 00
«mmilmlnt to sncouraging peopla 1o be sctively and practically Involved in the arts and
<ulture, 33 s maker andfor panticipent

Thrae-year projext to support and traln young people to research, plan and daliver £120,000 00
entreprenaurlal arts profects In thelr ¢ ittes, leading to perfs at Curve

Theatre

To traln sixteen workthop leaders to deliver courses that support a wide range of £16,340 00
organisatlons to devise high quality Big Draw and ather drawing sctivities

Supporting the 1alary of a Youth Asts Coordinator for three years 1o dallver a diverie range of £92,711100

arty programenes initisted and tailored by (and for) young peopls, and to shewcate them In
the organisation’s festivals
Translorming contexts for childran's performance in the UK. £52,000.00

PHF grant will support Ikon Gallery to work In partnership with Britlsh Waterways and a £220,000 00
soup af young people, sged 15- 19 yearsold, (rom Bliminghae. iton plan to lease & canal

boal to ba used as a dedicated space for an avolving youth graup, the participants will be

given the opportunity to callaborats with profescional artists snd IKON staff and developa

programme of arts activity on tha boat and the canal area

To davelop IMI's programeme, stablfise its fnanctal position by bulding reserves and davelop £70,000.00
its kundralsing strategy
To develop an educations! programma, in partnership with schools across London, for The £47,000.00

Box, & naw publicly sccessibla arts and sclanca research studio based at the Sclence Muteum
and led by Neurosclentist Beau Lotto and his Lottohab studio

Achange management and capacity buiIdin( profect, which supports the theatre's capital £145,000 00
erpintionand forlt to b a t tar for | ive children's service detivery
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Arts Programme

Grants awarded 1in 2010/11

Special Iniliatives
ArtWorks

Creative Scotland

Curlous Minds

The EMPAF Partaesship Lid

Foundatlon for Community Dance

Foundatlon for Community Dance

Guildhall School of Music & Crama

Guildhatl Schood of Music & Drama
Plymouth Musk Zone

University of Sundartand

University of Sunderfand

Welsh Natlonal Opera Ltd

Welsh Natlonal Opera Ltd

Awards for Artists

A programma to develop practice In participatory settings

Thh Is a natlonal steategic approach to creating retevant and high-quality sidlls development
and support It alms to bulld connecibvity, profestlonalism and identity, engender joined-up
ihinking and skill deve .1 itlon across Scottand for grists at alf stages of thelr
careers

Proposat Development

Proposal Development

The programme of work aims to share and add value to what the partners abready achlava In
delvering suppot tor artlsts, to develop a collective voke, to previda an on-fine resource for
artists and employers snd develop a nations] qualily sssurance framawark

#ropossl Development

The aim of this pathfinder is to jein up the best of existing proviston and actively encoviaga
nety practice in training and development of artlits working 'n participatory 1ettings The
programma inchudes undergraduate und posigraduste provision, as well ssthe

astablish efa ity of pr K s Each tralning pregramma Is talloved scross
portfollo roles, artlutic skills & reflective practice

Prapcsal Devalopment
Proposal Development

The programmae |s an enguiry-based h approach bullding on strong ']

In the North East An audit to reflect best-practice will be carried out that will document
common strengihs of existing provision and identity aress of development This will inform
tha fulure crestion of progression routes In different settings {youth, community, health,
soclal cara) (Uwill bring together 1peciafists from dilterent srtforms, academics, sractitioners
(ar1s bated and from social sector) to develop accredited Nexible/modular coursas, careers’
saminars, jointly authored research and the production of on line materisl

Proposal Development

Thisis a national strateglc spprosch alming to bring togethar Walsh batad sctists feom sll ant
(otms to work together to share thelr Indvidual practiee, using connacladty batvween art
torms, artlsts snd arganlyations as » calatyst for the development of a new snd sustsinable
tralning model The prop uses cross anti and tors dl tons to

picg

ing for natlonal di PENY

Propoial Davelopmant

Support costs

£200,000 CO

£1,500 00

£3,000 00

£18),500 00

£2,500.00

£266,310 00

£1,000 00
£2,000 00

£315,304 00

E£L500 00

£179,010 00

£2,000 00

£32,405 75

£1,284029 75

Elght awards to lndiiduat artists of £45,000 payable aver three years

Ce David f

Y, Anna Meredith & lason Yarde
Visual arts Angela de ha Cruz, Luke Forder, Chilsting Mackle, Ben Rivers & Undsay Seers

Support costs

£135,00000
E215,000 00
E48,340 99

£408,340 99
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Making Music
Making Mushe

Manchestes Carnerata Limitad

Manchester Intetnstions| Festival

Tha National Youth Orchestrs of Great
Britaln

Norfolk Cance Umited

PEER UK Led

Rajn) Shah Projects Lid

Royal Scottish National Orchestra
The Ruskin Glass Centre Limited

Tha Szge Gateshesd

Scottish Poetry Library

The Showroom

Greenwich Coumnll

Solent Centre for Architecture and Design
The Sotre!l Foundation

Southbank Centre

Southbank Cantre

Timespan

Tinderbox Theatre Company
Tyneside Cinema

WaDidThis

Open Grants total

Arts Programme total

Cove support towards a celebration of ensemble singing on an unprecedentad scale and
smbitied, bringing togather the world's leading vocal groups with singers of all backgrounds
and sbilities st the Roundhouse in March 2011

To develop 8 new strategy to receuit, traln and rataln a large and dkilled volunteer fosce 1o
reprasent and support moie than 200,000 non professicnal musklans across the UX

To underpin & prograntme of CPD and Integrated actlon resesrch, atmed at freehince
musleting

To davalop MIF Crestive 43 a core part ef the Manchester International Festival and provide
epportunitiss tor local people to work with [eading internations! artinns

To underpin the organisational development v/ork that NYO has started, supportieg them
threugh a period of changs, 12 achleva thelr vitlon and thape & soclally responsible future for
orchestral practice

Follkonring a peckod of research, particufarly relating to working with Integrated of non-
integrated groups, Norfolk Dance will extend thelr provit'on and practice towards peop'e
with learning difficulties andfor physical disabitittes devetoping a naw dellvery model acrors
the county

To wpport the development of 3 naw three year p of work In part hip with
artlsts, focal community erganisations, schools and bars

Rajnl $hah Projects Ltd Is ploneering » new madel of touring performance that priorities

developing long term relationshipy snd nurturing creativity In underpriviteged itles
acrass England

Athreo year progs of agtivitles deslgned 1o delver p { and professional
development to ofl 112 ASNO employees

Pilot sch sloring tha expansion of glasimaking workshops, te cutminste as part of tha
2010 internationst Fesiival of Glass & Glass Blennate

To sat upan bia to pravide taadership lor SG's tearn of muticians, working across lht
reglon and In the building as animateurs, teachers and perf: fach b

will gither lesd strands of work {overseeing particufar music practices ar contexty, such a folk
muslc) or lead specific projects working as an individual musiclan, in small groups or as past
of tha whols ensemble

To support s lenlbllity study into tha lal for developing a natlonal programma of woek
for older paople

Atwo-year serles of urtlm prnkcu wxploding new forms of partkipation in the Church
Steest neighbourhocd, g b the Nalds of art, educailon, and research

Aprog of warkshops for tha residents of a Greanwich housing estate focned on
dani Inabite crafts, cooking and } et

To davelop and run an education lnd plrtklanon programma assoclsted with the bullding

of sn archl Tty and concep! y parary tivepwork spaces for artlits In
the Naw Foreut

To underpin the estabilshment of a free Natlonal Art & Design Saturday Club for young
pecple across the country at their locs! college or university, building on an existing piiol

To continta to underpin Vo'celab for o further threo years, with # particutar emphasts on
widening parikipation and training volce anlmateuss

To the productian of sn anl d film by artlsl David Shrigley to lunch a campaign,
with :m nmlaud onlina patition, about public funding of the srts

tn wupport of a two year artlst residency programme which alms to develop engagement In
the contemporary arts from local groups In Helmsdaty {Scottish Highlands), Timespan board
members, stall and volunteers

To suppost Tinderbox Theatre Compeny's Qutreach Programme

Young Tyneside is a two-year project to explore new ways of working wilh young peopls and
J P 5 naw org lonal model for Tyneside Cinema

To evaluate their first pilot grojects, as well »3 {under behaviour and motivation. To help
Improve the sits and curate a tuller profect portloile
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£10,000.00

£39,000 00

£10,000.00

£150,000.00

£12C,000 00

£74,000 00

£75,000 00

£16,000 00

£11.72500
£7,910 00

£192,000 00

£9,000 00

£60,000 00

£22,000.00

£42,000.00

£144,873 00

£375,000 00

£9,000 00

£42,000,00

£66,000.00
£94,000.00

£10,000 00

£3,113,460.00

i

£4,957,086.34

——— . ———— |




iiducation and Learning Programme
Grants awarded in 2010/11

Special Initiatives

Learning Futures

Biddenham intarnationsl School and Sports
Collega

8irchos Head High School

Cramiington Learalng Village

Haybeldge High School & Sixth Ferm

Unton Village College
Matthew Moss High Sc¢hoa!

Nonkseaton High School
Noadsweood School

Readiwood Schood
Villters High School

Learning Away
Musical Bridges
Muslical Futures

What Works?

Speclal Initiative total

Open Grants
Argyll & Bute Courcll

ASDAN

Assoclation of Northamptonshire
Supplementary Schools

At 8ristol Umited

Aune Head Arts

Qevaloping news hing and ! Ing practices In schools

! af L Ing Futures cate stucly £5,000 00
A Learning Futures composite modal schoo! ~ grant enablad the school to adopt Leaming £10,000 00
Futures pedagogles
ALearning Futures composite model school ~ grant enabiod the school to adopt Learning £10,000 00
Futures pedagogles
Auqarning Futures composite modet schoo! ~ grant enabled the school 1o adopi Learning £10,000 00
Futures pedagogies
Devalopment of Languaga Futures tool £5,000 00
A tearnlng Futures componite medel sehool - grant enabled the school to adopt Learning £10,000 00
Futures pedagogles
Devel for Spacad ing tool £10,000 00
Atearning Futures composite modal school - grant enabled tha scheo! 1o adopt Learaing £10,000 00
Futures pedagogles
Development for Learning Futures resource coaching tocl £5,000.00
ALasraling Fulures composite madel school — grant enablad tha school to adopt Leatning £10,000 00
Futures pedagogles
Suppaort costs £390,586 50
£475,586 50

)

Suppodt costs for special initiative pllsting lancvative approaches fo residential learaing for £E83,492 33
voung pesols

Support costs for special initlative daveleping gles for1e ton In muskc educatl £100,033 69
Support costs - retearch, ady v.d lon #nd ftancy costs for special initiatve £189912 2%
supparting Innovation In tchoat musle aducation

Support costs - research, diss and i y costs for spacia! Initiative explosing £57,147 64

good practice In supporting and retalning students in higher education

£906,222.91

e

Fheough delhvorng a series of asts based workshops in 1choots across the district, the £43,670 00
Crealwe Arts [n Schools Team will develop » learning envir t that fosters
stlon th h tlon, respect and empowarment
Developing a formal accraditation process and citizenship award to recognlse ciltenship £35,000,00
tearning W & faith based context, inltially with the Muslim community
Establishi ve, fictal snd develop i pa hips b £24,101 00
pp v and mal schools, | Ing joint study suppodt accreditation and
tralning
Bullding on the success of ‘Bright Sparks’, “inspiring Interactions for BME primary sducators’ £48,640.00
focuses on jolnt CPD and mentoring programmae for supp! tary and mal !
teaching
Spaak Upl A partnarship projsct weorking to develop marginalised young pecple’s speaking £126,047 00

and listening skalls and enatle tham 1o play & greater rote In thelr communities through youtt
led community tadlo

Bad!ingtonshire Community High School Sotting up » youth transltion team, led by youth workers working with famitles in midd'e £106,435.00
schools, for Larget group work improving o and salf-est within & federation of
schools in Northumberland

Csl Aa] Education Paninership (CAEP) Developing # sironges busi plan and model for sustainability within the supplementary £10,000,00
education sector

The Cardigan Cenire \Working with yaung people to enable them to b fident I s lnall £114,72800
aspects of thelr Dves

Chestesfald/Neath East Derbyshire Learning The Bridgo Profect will piiot a naw approsch to support young paople with attachment £133,335.00

Community disorder and provides a chatl in Ihinking for schools that have cucriculun needs as a first
prlority

The Children's Soclety Developt ting & Ustenlag as part of an (ntergenerational project for young people £79,491.00
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ContinYou

Debate Mato Umited

Eastside Young Leaders’ Academy

Enfield Voluntary Actlon

The Gecgraphical Assoclation

1CAN

{napire - the Education Buslness Partnership
for Hackney

lobs Education and Tralalng
LaneshawBildge Primary School
London Borough of Hammersmith and
Fulbam

London Collective (R ]
F}

LN

Mounts Bay Schoal
NEAD

Patcham High School

The Phoenix Group for Dea! Children

Pucject Voluma

Auch Edueatlan b

Partnership

$tkh Community and Youth Service (SCrS}
SpeakersBank Umited

SWIFTY

Tatk Tegether London CIC

Teignmeuth Community College
UCL Institute of Chitd Haealth

The Village Storyteliing Centre
Wakefield Councit
VWhaote Education

Whele Education

Open Grants total

Education & Learning

sulinl up the Independent, pe:r-nmtml quality m:o;nmon scheme devaloped by The £150,000 00

9 Cenire, 2 L camy g on behalf of supp! Y
education and based within Conlln‘fou

Expanding an innovative near-to-peer debating programme and follow-on leadership £122,038.00

opportunities Inthree regional citles

Embedding » comprehensive prograrmme and centrat 1 top ! it £33,000 00

to build an exemplary model that can Infosm practice in the wider ! y schoal

sector

Achisving a step change [n the nature of partaership king batween mal and £38,00000
[ tary schools taimp pupll and infl local policy for tha benafit

of supplemantary 1chools

My place, our clty, our world Davelopling young people's understanding of place through £91,500.00

spaaking and fistening to othets In the community

To complate the piloting of Secondary Talk and preparation for national roll out and £100,000.00

undartske a three-yesr avaluation of impact

Mind the Gap Atwo-year programme alming to support students in transition from Key £135,000.00

Stage 2 to 3 and Identifled 3+ at ik of di Ing fram mal education

Tralning \n speaking and listaning 1kills ralated to community tenslons, conflikt managemaent £127,13200

and job search skills for BME tecondary tchool students in Darby

Using Tranicandental Madiation with puplls, teschers, and parents / carers in three schools £63,000 00

in Lancashire In ordes to Incrad1e engagament and reduce truancy and exclusion

Tike Two Daveloping and evalualing # speaking and Bstening p for dary £173,000 00
peipils in Satford and London to eguip them for the vrorld olwml

A pilet tralning programma for schools In which radio production and editing technlques sre £%,880.00
vied wathin the Nstions! Cuniculum to develup spesking and listening skills,

\Wldening access to public speaking To work with FE colfleges and work based tearning E149,360 00

ad,

P to davetop the public king skills of Foundation Lavel learnars through actve
citizanshlp prajects

Thls naw early intesvention Student Support Service will provide an individuallsed, £79,838.00
lc progs , comblned with team and sell esteem building through sport, to

adduu key Issury Indinl o exclusion

Global English F g on current localfglobal issues to sitmul tudents’ speaking and £146,699 00

Histening skils within the teaching of Emﬂlh in secondary schools

Devetoping the ipesking, listening, reading, and communication skills of guplls who are £115,884 00

undaveloped inthelr tochsl ability to communicate eifectively

Usten and Speak Upl Addresting and daveloping listening and speaking skills for deaf yaung £80,490 0

peopla to empower them and prepare them for the warld of work

ARTiculate An ‘active research model' deslgned for yourg peoplo with scvere learing £23,325 00

disabilitles to kook at developing speaking and Hstening skills, through dwecting snd belng

directed In dance

Establishing & nurtyre group setting to support vulnerabla pupits who have emotions! iteracy £150,000.00

nseds, are identified a1 at dik of soctal exchuslon and not on track to fulfil their potential

Punjabl web portal To updats and modernize current hing methods and usad £95,000 00

in Punjabi suppl ary schools In order to i ! ing and incresse uptake st

GCSE

Environmantally Speaking A feasibility study tor a public-speaking tralning pregramma In £33,000 &3

which pupils In secondary educsilon in the South \West of England will champlon » locat
eowironmental community cause

\Yorking thes, ically and 1y Scally with lamilbes st rlsk, children 3t dlsk of exclusion £149,800 00
and school partners In a cross ghase family support profect
Devetoping and evaluating #n Ianovative cross-cuftural supplementary school model, £112,612.00

boosting the stialnment of bilingual young peop'e through engaging parents and sddressing
cudtural barrlers to educational achlevernent

Deaveloping school and family strategius to pravent excluslon £98,356 00
Evaluating the "INCLUSIVE' Projact Pilot randomised controlled study of the INCLUSIVE £30,000 00
interventon INCLUSIVE kmpi 1 Lhe school snvi t restorstive Juilice

approackas and dalivers s soclal and emotlonal skills cuercutum

Strengthening the Yolces of Young People StoryteBlng will be a tool for personal £16,850 00
developmaent, supporting speaking snd listening skifls Young peopln will shape and share
thalr storles, past peesent and future

The s;hml Exclusion Team alms to Implement n:storalm Practico acrosy ali 150 schools in £100,000 00
tha , SUDP d by embedding AP 3 In & range of tralning courses for new
lnd e:dnln; tud\eu
develop and stakehatd To d ¢ the cora capabllitl £15,000 00
lnd tapacitlas of the organisation to meat its key aims and achiave wnalmb&l-w from
September 2012
To duvelop and suppart a camypalgn to replace the English Baccalauraate with # better £10,000.00
b I that witl provide young peopls with 2 more rounded education
£3,269,219.00
£4,175,441.91

»




Social justice Programme
Grants awarded in 2010/11

Special Initiatives

Reading & Libraries
Challenge Fund
Refugee and Asylum
Seeker Fund

Right Here

Supported Options
(LeaveZRemain)
Young Undocumented
Migrants Research
Special initiative total

Open Grants
The Actlon Greup

Bolton Lads and Girls Club

Clinks

Dennlstoun Community Youth Project

Divernty Films

Doversity Films

Fight for Peaca (UK)

Goldsmiths, Universty of London

Healing Our Past Experiences {Hopo Gioup)

Hillingdon Refuges Support Group

tndefinite Films / Leave to Remain

The instituta for Soclal Change

The Koastler Trust

The LankellyChass Foundation

Support costs - dissemnination costs £233 47

Support costs - dhsernlnation costs £416 94

Support costs for Mental Health Special lnitiative focussing on daveloping Innovative £220,364 90

approsches to young peopla’s mantal health issues

Support cosls - development costs for new speclal inltiative £7,400 00

Support costs - research and development cosis £4,350 16
£232,805.57

—_————

Daveloprnent of support service for BME § g disabled in Edinburgh and the Lothlans £193 930 00
Extension of existing wupport service to asslit young people ovar the sga of 18.

To continue a successful two year pilot funded by Department for Education’s Youth Sector £150,000 00
Davelopment Grant The model ~ which targets wath intensive support 14-16 year olds most

#t rhk of ending up 23 long torm excluded from edication employment and training = will be

adapted ta intervene with young people from the age of 11 12

funding towards cora costs to enabla ongoing support, ads y for and engags t of the £300,000 CO
third sector working in criminal justice

E ding DCYP's exlating services to deliver, ia p hip with other tocal sarvice £40,000 00
providers, s prog of one Lla-one support 10 local young people, which

enables them to access education and ualning and develop the sklils snd confidanca to lake
advantage of amerging employment opportunitles

Funding to cover s budget shortfall In Diversity Film's Starting Block initiative — a cross £23,000.00
commualily programma ustng film to promote communlty coheslon ln Glasgow

Business davelopment support for the Starting Block Inttiative £10,000 00

Founded in Brazll, Fight For Peaco (FFP} uses boxing and martial arts combined with persanal £75,000 00
duvelopment courses 1o realise tha potentlal of young people Incommunitbes that suifer

lrom <rime and viclence In 1007 FFP was replicated In Newham, with the establish tof

the FFP Acaderyin North Woolwich This grant provides support to cantinue the delivery of

1hi3 project, as wall as complsta the sdaptation p of the intarvention model for the i

1o reduce gang violencs and antl social behaviour In daprived ¢ itles through

waducation, work tralning and support services

Delivery of » practth and academi f on Vil soclety snd the arts. £5,000,00
This grant supposts the creation of » locel nnd nations! service that focuses on reactung and £149,901 00
suppofting teenaga victims of abuse snd cape and includes the develop of & nattonat
helpline
A partnership batween PHF, Hillingden Refuges Suppon Group and Youthbank to support £2,12000
and irain a group of young people to b grants asnd adminl thelr own
grants {und
Development of a campaign concept and production of a high fevel campalgns sirategy that E8, 95000
can maximise usa of the ralsed public of the h f undec d asylum

king chidren, dbyac {al feature fitm, to achleve change
Support for development and delivery of an Immigration module for the 8ntish Soclal £50,000 00

Attitudes Survey conducted by the Nations! Centra for Soclal Research This survey will
explora differences In stutudes towards immigration between subsections of the British
population snd understand how their attitudes to immigration relate to their wider sockal
values and consumption of tha mass medias

Ex of ‘Arts ng for Ret dF s praject and UX-wide roll aut of tha Arts £1E0,000 00
Award Schama’s exhibitlons, curated by marginalised young people

Contribution to the Women's Drversionary Fund Round 2 {\WWDF2), a joint initlative between £150,000.00
the Ministry of justice (Mol) and the Corston Independent Funders’ Coalitlon, an alliance of

22ch ble trusts and foundatt king to form inerable women are

ueated in the cidminal justice system through Imp! tation of dations In

Baroness Corston's 2007 review
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Law Centres Federation

Uamau

Musicand Change

Music in Detention

Raw Philanthropy Capltal
On$ide North Wast

The PlaceiBe
Reclaim Project Lid

The Runnymede Trust
Scotllsh Adoption Assoclation
$'gniestinh

Soclat Impact Parinership

WomaenCentre 1td

The Young foundation

Young Peope In Focus

YouthKst

Open Grants total

Soctal Justice Programme
total

Further development of Lavw Centras In England and \Wates to increzse Lhe numbar that we
shillad in dellvering youth centrad legal advica services, Including housing, benefits, dabt,
educatlon, discrimination, asylum and Immigration

Worklng acrass Caerphilly, Newport and Torfaen, EMPHASIS provides an Intensive and
asiertivo outreach programme to the mast excluded and non-engaging 14 19 year oldy, who
are most ot rlsk of hamslesiness
Support for Mutls and Change to consolidate and grow an existing multi-agency project
which, through the creation of mule, 1e4Xs to promote soclal inclusion and positive mental
health to rnarginalised young peophe and influence mental health deflvery and policy This
builds on a PHF fundad pitot
This funding supports a segment of Music In Detention's continued delivery of work in

g | Cantres, exp and devel t of their community exchange
work and davolution of delivery to local paninerships
Cota support for NPC to enable (ts online wellbelng messurement taol to benofit » wide
range organisations that work with chitdren and young people
Capatity building for volunteers who support partkipation of disabled young pecple In s new
wave of north west youth facilitles
This profect will provide support to p t y and exclusion by providing 1B
school based menta) heallh services to 90,000 at-risk children and families In 20 deprived
areas scrost the UK by 2020
Core funding to enabla Reclalm Project, an award winning leaderstip and mentodng project
for young people at risk of negative outcomes, 10 set up 23 2 new organhistion

Transition costs 1o ¢nable the Information Centre About Asylum Lo move to the Runnymede
Trust

Devatopment of a chitd cantred adoption support service offering individusl and greup
support

Pilot for establishing a domaestic sbuee sarvice for young deaf peopla In the UK

A {bution ta a recifending Socis! Impact 8ond A partnership of foundatlons will fund
third sector ovganisations working to reduce the re-offending sates of shart sentance male
prisoners leaving Paterborough Prison

Cansuftation wilh womaen’s centres and vulnerable women in contact with tha eriminal jusilce
system 10 83 to ansura thare s 8 full, inct and wall ¢ d womin's sector feiponso
to the consuitation on the Minlstry of Justice (MoJ) Green Paper Bresking iRe Cycle
Effactive Punishment, Rehabilistion and Sentencing of Olfenders.

Support Lo concluds the pilot of a leadershl & in «3st London which identiiles,
recruits and supports young sdults sged 19-25 from marginalised itles, to b
thi public lesdars of the fulwe 1o Bntain's in writh the public

A quarter of young men {13-14 years old] In custody are fathers or fathers-to-be Thealmo!
this project Is to Improva the parenting of young fathess who ara in custady, a1 a timo when
thay are motivated to change

To engage and work wath marginalised young people to carry out s major redevelopment of
TheSita which provides enfine suppont for young peopla in the UK

£2121,647 00

£150,000.00

£135,000 00

£195,342 00

£130,000 00
£62,810.00

£140,249 00

£150,000.00

£5,000.00
£16,000 00
£120,000.00

E100,000 00

£10,000.00

£169,934 00

£147,441 0O

£3,152,454.00

£3,385,259.57




India Programme

Grants awarded in 2010/11

Open Grants

for Rural Ady h h

Voluntary Action & Local Involverent

Ralhar Nari Utthan Sawa Mahlla Mandal
{Nark Uthan)

Building Institutions that challenge poverty

Development Inltiative wath Balga Tribal Community

Bhagwan Mahaveer Viklang $ahayata Samiti Support to Jaipur Foot

Bhoomika Vihar

Digdarshiks, mstilute of Rehabiltatlon and
Reseasch
Gramlin Mahils Vikas Sanstha {GMVS)

Gramin Mahila Vitas Sanstha {(GMVS)
Janvikas Samajik Sanstha [JV5S}
Kelata Sanved

| tnstitute of W , Child and
Youth Development {(NIWCYD)
Nlrantar Trust

North East Research and Sochsl Work
Networking (NERSWN)
Pradeepan

Pradeepan

Professional Asshitance for Development
Action (PRADAN)
Profascional Asskstance for Developmaent
Action (PRADAN)
Rewarch Academy for Rurdl Enrichment

Samaj Vikas Sanstha (SV§)

Secial Animatlen T ds United tib

Soclal safaty nats for girls In North Blhar

To ¢create & model on comprehensiva Inclusive education of the g with divabliLles
Eahancing Qalit 's role In devel
Enhancing Daht s role bn develop {continuation)

Education suppont to soclally excluded chlldren
Using dance movemaent therapy for rehabllitation in Governmant Shalter Homes

Platform girls care and protaction

Residentisl educatlonal centre for tribad adolescent girls
PFromoting equitab's healthcara In Kokrajhar

tivelihood support In Batul District
Lvelhaed support 1n Batul Disteict (comtlnuation)
Uivellthood Support in Mayurbhan)

Uvelihood Suppornt in Mayurbhian) (continustion).
CBR programma for people with disabilities in Tarbha Block of Sonepur Olsiricy, Odisha
Organising women to addrass issues of vialence In Osmanabad and Latur Districty

Organising ming workess in Mahatashira

Actlon (SANTULAN)
Social Anlmation Tawards United Ub

Actlon (SANTULAN}
Tomorrow's Foundation

VAANL Deaf Children’s Foundation
VAANI Deal Children's Foundation

Open grants total

Exchange Rats Adjustments

india Programme total

s ing mins workers In Mahatashtra fcontinuation)

Educational and economic rehabilitation of children of Bastar
Suppoit to deaf children’s erganisations in East Indla
Support to deaf children's crganisations In East Indla {continuation)

Othet grants awarded in 2010/11:

The Helan Hamlyn Trust
The Pennles Foundation
Disasters Emergenty Commilttee

Tolal other grants

Grants awarded & Sl
support costs total

£179.912.00

£59,948 30
£139,999 93

£22,152 00
£8,676 00

£131,509 33
E11,645 34
£55,272 00
£17,254.00

£95,289 63

£26,007 §0
£9,385 53

E13,155 73
1341238
£44.91390

£45.459 82
£24497 22
£A40,973 32
£12,505 89
£12,65) 67

£21,984 00
£32,73% 82
£33,12671

£932,559.17
£113,673 04

£1,046,232.21

£2,150,000.00

" £15,714,020.03




Paul Hamlyn Foundation Trustee Report and Financlal Statements 2010/11

IFinancial Review

Endowment Fund and Investment Portfolio

A year of recovery in economy and markets but rising inflation warrants
caution

The Endowment Fund represenis the original gifts by Paul Hamiyn, both in his lifelime and under the terms of his
will, together with nel gains from related invesiment assets The Trusleas have discrellon to make disbursements
from the Endowment fund In circumstances they consider appropriate Invesiment returns from the Endowment
nvestment portfolio are used to finance grant-making and other work.

After the gains of lhe preceding financial year, 2010-11 was a period of continuad recovary, although the
increase in global inflation suggests greater cautlon may be appropriate in coming monihs Overall the
Foundation made gains of £20 1m as the markets recovered. The total size of the fund (invesiment and other
assets excluding cash in hand) rose to £674 8 million at 318t March 2011 The Endowment fund received a small
additional contnbution during 2010/11 of £5 7m from the further winding up of the Paul Hamiyn estate

The Foundation has wide investment powers which are specified in its Memorandum and Articles of Asgoclation.
All Trustoes are involved in selting investment policy, but authorily to declde sirategy is delegated to the Finance
and lnvestment Commiltee The Finance and Investment Commiites, with input from senior staff, consultants and
Paul Hamiyn Foundation’s own Investment Director Richard Robinson, sets assel allocation and engages
professtonal managers running its multi-asset, muiti-manager portfolio. Most of the managers have discretionary
mandates although use of advisory and passive sirategies is made

The Foundation's investment poficy is lo

- Maintain in the long run the real purchasing power of the Endowment fund

- Invest in a diverse range of assets which are most likely to give good total returns in the long term, In
ordar to maximise the total real vatue of the amounts available for grant-making and other work

- Manage volatiily as far as possible, while accepting that a degree of volatility is concomitant with
seaking high returns

During the year under review, within the portfolio itself, the Finance and Investment Commuttee continued to
pursus a relatively cautious stance They continued the policy of diversification by increasing the breadth of
Investments with ongolng commitments to hedge funds, venture/private equity invesimants, speclalist cash and
currency management, as well as making additional specific commilments into equity markets and specialist
bond markets

Significant developments in the year included
- We sold our corporale bonds after having made a gooed return In view of the likelihood of rising interest
rates we moved the money into an ‘unconstrained’ bond strategy run by PIMCO with no impliat duration
in its benchmark
- We amended our global equity line-up by appoinling Harding Loevner as a manager Addtionally we
established a direclly invested portfolio of the largest capitalisation global companles We perceive that
these have allractive total return characteristics.

- We moved our ‘indirect’ propesty expesure into a fund of funds run by Aviva, which provides both
liquidily and a higher degree of aclive management By the end of the year we had arranged to sell our
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last directly held UK properly, a process of porifolio reorganisation we began the year before with the
move of most assets into the ‘Charity Property Fund'.

- The Foundatlon continued to build out iis exposure to hedge funds and venture capital, including
exposure to Asia We conlinue to benefil from advice from Cambridge Assoclates in structuring our
alternatives portfolio

- Aftar considerable reflaclion we decided lo adopt a 50% sterling/50% non sterling currency neutral going
forward, around which, within guidelines, we manage currency exposures

The maih asset allocation changes to the Endowment fund during the year were

- Ovaerall exposure lo publicly quoted equities by year end was approx 48%, liitte changed from the
previous year The main focus of the listed squily portfolio remains large capilalisation stocks with good
dividends Whilst these lagged the broad equilty indices in 20010/1 1the Investment Commiltee felt that,
in the light of their cautious market outlook, such a policy was apprapriate

- Hedge fund and other absolute return lype investments ware increazed, nsing from 13% of assets to
15% by year and

- Wilh a diversification of approaches within the fixed interest portfolio and addition to rcal assets and
venture capital, cash and fixed Interest overall was reduced from about 34% to 28%

When adjusted by the amounl spent on grants and cosis In the year, the Foundation’s Endowment investment
porifolio rose by +6.1% for the financial year, making an overall advance hefore spand, over the last 3 years of
approximately +18 3%. At the end of the year the value of the Endowment was in advance of the Trustees' target
of preserving the real vatue of its purchasing power This calculation la made by adjusling Paul Hamiyn's
bsquests over time for Retail Price index, net of grants

Unrestricted and Restricted Funds and Reserves

The Foundation's unrestricted fund is used to finance the Foundation’s tangible fixed assets and working capital
and to provide a shorl term buffer for grant making and other costs The unrestricted fund is financed by returns
on investments, including investment income and transfers from the endowmenlt fund Quring the year, £6 2m
was transfarred from the endowment fund and at 31st March 2011 the unrestricted fund stands at £2.6m. The
Finance Commitiee has agreed to manage Ils reserves by ensuring a sum equivalent to at least six months of
working capital commitments (including grant commitments) Is held In readily accessible liquid assets Atthe end
of 2010/11, investment holdings In cash and other liquid deposits were £41 9m and slx months of commilments
are estimated at approximately £16m

During the year, the Foundation established a restricted fund as it received grant income from pariners joinlly
funding some aspects of the Art Works special initiative At the end of the year, this fund stood at £65,000

Expenditure

Grants awarded before adjustments fell by 16% in 201011 when compared with 2009/10 as was anticipated in
the Foundation’s annual plan The timing of major awards under several special Initiatives, particularly in the
Education & Learning and Soclal Justice Programme areas means that expenditure has been phased to fall In
later years. Consequently, speclal Inillatives expenditure as a perceniage of grant expenditure (excluding Helen
Hamiyn Trust) reduced to 22% of grant spend and open grants increased to 78% In keeping with the
Foundation's sirategic ptan, expenditure In India increased to over E1m

Support cost expendilure has increased by 11% (£211,000 approx) but the largest element of this increase has
been the exceptional costs associated with the Foundation's purchase and refurbishment of ils new premises,
including the increase of the dilapidation provision to altow for work on leaving the exlsting premises. Costs of
supporting the Foundatlon's grant operations have increased by £55,000, but this is primarly due to the costs of
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the first full year of running the India office Reduchions In costs can be seen in the communications and
governance areas wherge some one-of projects undertaken in 2009710 have not been repeated

Financial Risk

The Foundation's principal material financia! risks, Including foreign exchange exposures, relate to lls Investment
portfolio and are in line with similar long-term endowment funds in the sector Overall investment risk
management Is pradicated on running a diversified porifolio of high quality assets across a wide varlety of asset
classes and markets The longer term sirategic asset mix is set by the Finance and Investment commiltee, with
input from Cambridge Associates and others Individual investiment mandates are awarded to speclalist
managars after scrutiny by the Finance and Investment Commiltee with input from various sources n 2010/11
the Foundation entered into hedging contracts to protect against currency risk  The Trustees consider the
Foundation's risk profile on a regular basis

/
Tn B &
Tim Bunting T BUV\J'TINQ

Chairman, Finance and Investment Commillee
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Statement of Financial Activilies
for the year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2011 011 2011 2010
Notes Unsestricted Restilcted Endowment Total Total
fund fund fund
£m £m £ £m 13
Incoming rasources from generated funds
Legacy Income - - 5709 s 709 01252
towestment Income b 13 798 . - 13.793 10987
Granis recetvable 15 - 0 265 - 0265 -
Telal Incoming resources 13 798 0 265 5 709 1971 11239
Resourcas experdied
Investment management 3 3812 - - 3812 2,955
Grant making 4 17 484 0200 - 17 684 20 390
Governance 7 0046 . . 0.046 0051
Total rasourcas expended 21 342 0.200 - 21 542 23 395
Nat {outgolng)/Incoming rosourcos and
net Incoma far the year bafore transfars {7544) 0055 5709 {1770} {12 157)
Transfers 16 6 289 - 16289) - -
Net (outgolng)/incoming resources and
nat incoms for the year after transfers {1255} 0065 {0.580) {1770) {12157)
Othar recognised galns and lossos
Reallsed and unrealised galns (losses)
on Nxed asset Investments 9 - - 20130 20130 94 218
Not movement In funds (1258) 0065 19 550 18 360 82 061
Furds at 1 April 2010 3894 - 544 432 548 326 466,265
Funds 8t 31 March 2013 2639 0.065 563 982 565,686 548 326

The Statement of Financlal Activitles Includes the Income and Expenditure Account and the Statement of Total Recognlied Galns and Losses

The notes on pages 37 1o 43 form part of these financial statements
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Balance Sheet
at 31 March 2011

2011 2010
Notes Total Total
£m Em
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 8 4721 0091
Investment assets 9 564 783 540 297
569 504 540 388
Current assets
Debtors 10 1178 1207
Other investments 11 10026 23 307
Cash at bank and in hand 5526 1301
16.730 25 815
Creditors falling due within one year 12 {12.461 ) {9.772)
Net current assets 4 269 16.043
Total assets less current Habllities 573.773 556 431
Creditors falling due after more than cne year 13 {7.087} {8105)
Net assots 566 686 548 326
Funds at 31 March 2011 566 686 548 326
Represented by:
Unrestricted Funds 2639 3894
Restricted Funds 0065
Endowment Funds 563 982 544 432
Yotal Funds 566 686 548 326

The notes on pages 37 to 43 form part of these financial statements
The financial statements on pages 34 to 43 were approved by the trustees on S July 2011 and were signed on thelr

hehalf by — g (
he L~ [t 8w Ly
ane Hamlyn Tim Bunting
Trustee Trustee

Paul Hamlyn Foundation
A company {imited by guarantee reglstered In Engtand and Wales - number 5042279
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Cash Flow Stalement
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Net incoming/{outgolng) resources for the year
Less nvestment Income earned
Add back Investment management charges
Less legacy income
Add back depraclation
{Increase)/decrease in debtors
Increase In creditors due within one year
(Decrease)/increase in ¢reditors falling due after more than one year

Net cash (outllow) from operating activities as defined by FRS 1
Returns on investment

Investment income received

Investment management charges pald
Capltal expenditure and financlal Invastments

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Purchase of fixed assets and other Investments

Sale of fixed assets and other Investments

(Decrease)/increase In cash for the year before financing

Finanting
Legacy income

Increase In cash for the year
Cash at bank and In hand at 1 April 2010
Movement during the year

Cash at bank and In hand at 31 March 2011

36

2011 2010
Total Total
£m Em
{1770} {12 157)
(13,798} {10927}
3812 2,955
{5.709) {0252)
0042 0100
{0.379) 0 Q55
2698 0698
{1 018) 3068
{16 122) {16 520)
14 205 11 206
{3 820) {2 936)
{4 673) (0 042)
{142.973) {214 659)
156 699 223 867
(1.484) 0.916
5.709 0.252
4 225 1168
1.301 0133
4225 1.168
5.526 1.3
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011

1, Principal accounting polictes

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in accordance with
applicable Accounting Standards in the United Kingdom, the Statement of Recommended Practice for
Charities {2005) and the Companies Act 2006 A summary of the more important accounting policies,
which have bheen applied consistently, 1s set out below.

(a) Basls of accounting

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the “Statement of Recommended Practice
Accounting and Reporting by Charities” issued in March 2005, and the historical cost convention as
modifled by the revaluation of fixed asset investments

The foundation has three funds {endowment, unrestricted and restricted), and their operation s
explained on page 31 to 33,

Details of both entities which are included in these accounts are given in the reference and
administrative details on page 19

{b) Incoming resources

Al incoming resources, including grants, are included in the Statement of Financial Activities when the
Foundation is legally entitled to the funding and the amount can be quantified with reasonable
certainty Investment income from the endowment fund is treated as income in the unrestricted fund.

Restricted funds have rastrictions imposed by donors and can only be applhied for the particular
purposes specified by donors. The funds are not available for work performed by PHF other than that
specified by the donor

{c) Resources expended
Resources expended are the cost of generating funds, grant-making and governance costs.

Investment management fees and internal investment management costs are the only cost of
generating funds

Grant-making represents the costs of activities in furtherance of the Foundation’s objects and includes
the grants awarded by the Foundation, and the support costs associated with them. Where they cannot
be directly derived, support costs are allocated between grant-making activities on the basis of the value
of grants awarded.
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Governance costs are the costs associated with the strategic direction and corporate management of
the Foundation and include the cost of providing the infrastructure which allows the Foundation to
operate and to generate infermation required for public accountabllity.

Grants are recognised when they have been awarded and the grantee has been informed.

{d) Tangible fixed assets
All of the tangible fixed assets are held for charitable use

The cost of tangible fixed assets is their purchase cost, together with any incidental expenses of
acquisition and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into working conditions for its
intended use. Tangible fixed assets with a cost of less than £500 are not capitalised

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of tangible fixed assets on a straight line basis over
the expected useful economic lives of the assets cancerned. The Foundation plans to surrender the
lease of its offices in the next year and therefore shortened the expected life of certain assets during
previous years. There was no effect on the depreciation charged in the year ended 31* March 2011.
During the year, the Foundation purchased a freehold property in King’s Cross for use as its office
premises. The building is undergoing refurbishment and the Foundation has not derived any economic
benefit from its usage in 2010/11 therefore no depreciation has been appled in this year The principal
useful economic lives used for 1tems depreciated in the 2010/11 financial statements are as follows*

No of years
Furniture and fittings 4t012
Computer equipment 4

(e) Fixed asset investments

Listed investments are stated at their market value at the year end The Statement of Financial
Activities includes unrealised gains and losses arising from the revaluation of the investment portfolio in
the year and realised net gains and losses arising on disposals

investment property held directly has been valued by Knight Frank, an independent firm of international
property consultants and valuators. Pooled property investments are stated at net asset value as
calculated by the various managers.

The carrying value of unlisted investments is the trustees’ best estimate of the market value at the
balance sheet date

{f) Foreign currencles

Income denominated in foreign currencies Is recorded at the rate of exchange ruling on the date of
receipt. Foreign currency investments are valued at their year-end market value translated into sterling
at the year-end exchange rate or at the contract rate where foreign currency investments are subject to
an underlying hedge All gains or losses on transtation are taken to the Statement of Financial Activities
in the year in which they occur.

{g) Operating leases
Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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(h) Pension costs

The Foundation makes payments to the defined contribution personal pension plans of all its
employees The payments are based on a salary percentage and are charged to the Statement of
Financial Activities in the period to which they relate.

(i) Irrecoverablie value added tax
Irrecoverabie VAT is included as part of the expenditure to which it relates.

{j) Transfers hetween funds

Under the terms of Paul Hamiyn's will, the endowment of the Foundation is expendable although
the current policy of the trustees Is, where possible, to invest the assets of the Foundation to retain
the real value of the endowment whilst also generating sufficient return to fund grant-making. In
2010/11 the trustees agreed to transfer a proportion of consolidated endowment funds to fund in
year expenditure and this is shown on the statement of financial activities.
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2, Investment income

UK equittes

Overseas equities

FIxed Interest securitles
UK investment property
Term deposits

Unlisted investments
Alternatives

Total

3 Costof generating funds

Investment management fees and consultancy
Internal investment management costs
Total

2011 2010
£m £m
3196 2598
3412 4344
3484 0993
1.770 1453
0438 0701
1126 0868
0372 0030
13 798 10.937
2011 2010
£m £m
3 2869
0091 0 086
3.812 2,955

Paul Homlyn Foundation Yrustee Report ond Finonctol Statements 2010/11

With respect to investments in hedge funds and some private equily funds, the management agreements of the underlying funds provide
for compensation to the respective managers In the form of management and performance fees determined as a percentage of net assets
Fees in these cases are deducted from the funds’ assets and are reflected In the net asset values reported Internal Investment
management costs Include a part-time Investments Director

4, Charitahle activites: Grant-making

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the following charitable donations were awarded by the Foundation:

Grants awarded by value

Arts

Education and Learning

Soclal Justice

India

Other Grants

Sub Total

Returned Grants and adjustments to previous
years awards

exchange rate adjustments for awards in
previous years

Number of grants awarded
Arts

Education and Learning
Social Justice

India

Other Grants

2011 2011 2011 2010
Grants Support Grant- Grant-
awarded costs making making
im £m £m £m
4,958 0.610 5568 5044
4175 0520 4 695 5843
3185 0439 3824 6208
1046 0268 1.314 1,106
2150 0256 2.406 2413
15.714 2.093 17.807 20.614
{0196) - {0196) {0353)
0073 - 0073 0169
15.591 2.093 17.684 20.3%0

2011 2010

65 45

48 63

30 28

23 22

3 4

169 162

A schedule of the grants awarded in each programme area Is shown In the Trustees' Report  All grants were awarded
to arganisations with the exception of FO 360m (2010 £0,360m} awarded to eight {2010, eight) individuals.

£200,000 of these grants were funded by restricted funds {see note 16)




5. Support casts

Payroll and related costs
Operations suppart

Property expenses
Communications

Office expenses

Depreciatlon and [oss on disposals

Peul Homiya Foundatlen Trustee Report ond Financlol Statements 2010/11

2011 2010
Em £m

1153 1059
0.220 0164
0440 0238
0032 0088
0206 0231
0042 0101
2093 1.881

Support costs reflect the management structure of the organisation Operations support Includes the costs of temporary staff and recruitment

6. Total Staff Costs

Gross salarles

Saclal security costs

Other penslon costs

Other employment costs

Total payroll and related costs

The average number of persons employad by the Foundation during the year was 30 {2010: 27).
The number of employees whose salarles wera above £60,000 was

£60,0C0 to £70,000
£70,001 to £80,000
£90,001 to £100,000
£100,001 to £110,000

2011 2010
£m £m
0942 0876
0105 0095
0.130 0.116
0.067 0057
1.2184 1,144
2011 2010
Numbher Number
20 30
10 -
- 1.0
i0 -

During the year the Foundation made contributions of £55,027 (2010, £51,461) to the personal penslon plans

of these employess

The trustees are not employed by the Foundation and do not receive any emoluments In respect of their services.
Travel expenses of £7,689 {2010, £6,246) were retmbursed to flve (2010 six) trustees during the year

7. Gavernance costs

Audit fees
Lagal and professional faes
Office expenses

2011 2010

£m £m
0021 0.018
0 006 0019
0.019 0014
0.046 0.051
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8. Tangible fixed assets

Freeheld Leasehold Furniture Computer Total
property property and fittings equipment
fm Em £m Em £m

Cost
As at 1 April 2010 - D511 0141 0232 0935
Additlens 4645 - - 0028 4673 !
Disposals - - - {0008 ) 0008 '
As at 31 March 2011 4.645 0.511 0.141 0 302 5.599
Depreciation
As at 1 April 2010 - 0511 04120 0213 0844
Charge for the year - - 0002 0040 0042
Disposals - - - {0008 ) -0 008
As at 31 March 2011 0.511 0.122 0.245 0.878
Net Beok Value
As at 31 March 2011 4.645 0.000 0.019 0.057 4.721
As at 1st April 2010 000 0goo 0022 0069 0091

During the year, the Foundation purchased a freehold property for use as its office space At 31st March 2011 refurbishment was still being undertaken
and the Foundation does not expect to move until Autumn 2011, Depreclation will be commence once the Foundation moves to the new building

9. Fixed asset Investments 2011 2010
£m £m
Market value at 1 Aprli 2010 540 297 449909
Purchases 147.773 214 659
Sales (143417) (218489)
Net realised and unrealised gains 20130 94.218
Market Value as at 31 March 2011 564.783 540.297
Investments at market value comprised 2011 2010
£m £m
UK equities 51.48% 52,111
Qverseas equities 224,953 219,193
Fixed interest securities 134 244 128 408
UK Investment property 33,150 27 446
Alternative securitles 85 844 64 193 ;
Term deposits 17 162 38587
Unlisted Investments 17 931 10.359

Total {including cash held for Invastment by
managers} 564,783 540.297

Trustees conslder that any incidental cash balance held by an Investment manager Is an integral part of Its asset
allocatlon and have inctuded it In the appropriate asset class
The historlcal cost of the above assets is £468 976m  The historical costs of the assets held by the Foundationin 2010 was £454 621m

During the year, the Foundation entered Into currency hedging contracts to reduce the currency risk following the greater global diverslfication
of its investment holdings Galns or losses are Included within the figures above No contracts were In place at 31st March 2011

10 Debtors w011 2011 2011 011 2010
Unrestricted  Restricted  Endowment

Fund fund fund Total Total

£m £m fm £m £m

Prepayments and cther debtors 0168 - 0376 0544 0.166

Accrued investment Income 05634 - - 0634 1041

0.802 0000 0.376 1.1738 1.207

Debtors In 2011 Include an outstanding payment of £376,231 representing gains on currency hedging which was pald on 1st Aprll 2011

11. Other Investments 2011 2011 2011 2011 2010
Unrestricted Resiricted  Endowment
fund fund fund Tota) Total X
Em £m £fm fm Em ;
Cash degposits 9 551 - 0075 10.026 23.307
9.951 - 0.075 10.026 23.307
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12 Creditors falling due within one year 2011 2011 1011 2011 2010
Unrestricted  Restricted  Endowment
fund fund fund 4.00 Tatal

£m fm £m fm £m

Grants payable 10 724 - - 10724 9450

Investment management fees accrual 0135 - - 0135 0143

Accruals and creditors 0351 - 0376 0727 0.179
Taxation and soclal security contributions 0000 - - 0.000 -
Other creditors - - 0875 0875 -

11.210 0,000 1251 12 461 9.772

The Foundation Intends to vacate Its current premises in 2011/12 and a creditor is Included within the figures above being the provision for
dialap!datlons on its current building
An estimate of dilapldation costs was undertaken by Malcolm Hollis Chartered Surveyors in November 2010

2011 2011 2011 2011 2010
Unrestricted  Restricted  Endowment
13 Credivors falling due after more than one yea fund fund fund Total Total
Em £m Em £m Em
Grants payable In one to two years 5211 - - 5211 5446
Grants payable after two years 1876 - - 1876 2 659
7.087 - - 7087 8,105

14. Special initlative expenditure

The Foundatlon establishes special inltlatives In order to meet its alms Perlodically the trustees allocate resources
to these Initiatives The current total allocatlons, and the amounts expended In this year and earlier years, and the
amounts which may be expended In future years, are shown below.

Earller years  Thisyear Future years Tatal

All Spectal Initlatives 21 304 2 983 q 784 29 071

15. Operating lease commitments

The Foundatlon occuples its offices under a lease which explres In 2012 The current rent Is £0,194 millton inclusive
of VAT {2009 £0 189 million),
The Foundatlon has a tenant's aption to break the lease by giving six months' notice

16. Funds
a) Description of funds

- The unrestricted fund comprises accumulated Income, Income generated In year and transfers from the endowment fund
1tis used to finance the Foundation's working capital requirements including grant making and tangible fixed assets

- The endowment fund represents The original and subsequent gifts of Paul Hamlyn to The foundation The trustees manage The endowment fund to
maximise returns and also have the discretian to make disbursements from the endowment fund If they conslder the circumstances appropriate

- Restricted funds have restrictions Imposed by donors and can only be applled for the particular purposes specifled by donors In 2011

all restricted funds have been recelved for contrlbutions to the Art Works Special Inltfative The Cultural Leadership Programme {Arts Council England)
are part funding a symposium to be held (n Spring 2011, The Arts and Humanitles Research Council are contributing to evaluation costs which wil)
commence In April/May 2011 Creatlvity, Culture and Educatlon are contributing to the funding of three pathfinder grantees In England (costs
included in grants awarded in note 4} and extending the Art Works programme

Balance at
Incoming 31 March
Bafanceat Resources  Expenditure 011
1st April
b) Movemant In restricted funds 2010
Arts Councll England 0.000 0015 - 0.015
Arts and Humanities Research Councll 0.000 0.050 - 0050
Creativity, Culture and Education 0,000 0.200 0.200 -
0900 0.265 0.200 0.065

¢) Transfer between funds
The Trustees agreed to the transfer of £6,288,677 36 from the endowment fund to the unrestricted fund to meet the costs of ongoing operations
In 2010711
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Trustees, staff and advisers as at 315t March 2011

Trustees

Jana Hamtyn {Chalr)
Tim Bunting

Michael Hamiyn
James Lingwood

Staff

Ushl Bagga
Denise Barrows
Rob Bell

Susan Blishen
Liz Cadogan

Ajit Chaudhur
Regis Cochefert
Tany Davey
Sarah Jane Dooley
Susan D'Sylva
Robert Dufton
Gllllan Goode
Lisa Howard
Dorothée Irving
Fallma Joagulm
Marla Karska
Marla Kennelt
Lafa Khan
Richard King
Abigall Knipe
Jufia Mirkin
Marcsllo Moro
Lucy Palfreyman
Richard Robinson
LIz Scolt

Vicki Selby
Bathan Staton
Carrde Supple
Dan Watson
Fays Willlams
Skalzang Youdon

Advisors

Bridgette Anderson
Robert Berkeley

Boh Boas

Professor Sir Tim Bnghouse
Kate Brindley

Lord Gavien

Roger Graef

Sushma lyengar
Jennfer 1zakor

Maureen McGinn

Dr Donald Pack
Jonathan Reekle
Shankar Venkateswaran
Clalre Whitaker
Vanessa Wiseman

Dr Paul Woolley

Indepandent Auditora

Estalle Morris

Lord Moser
Anthony Salz
Peter Wilson Smith
Tom Wylle

Grants Officer

Head of Education and Learning

Head of Social Justice

Right Here (Mental Health Special initiative) Manager
Grants Officer

Diractor, India

Head of Arls

Informatton and Resources Officer
Grants Officar

Finance Officer

Drector

Grants Asslatant

Grants Assistant

Grants Assistant (malernity leave cover)
Housekeeper

Administration Officer

Chair and Direclor’s Assistant

Chair and Director’s Asslstant (maternity leave cover)
Grants Assistant

Grants Assistant

Grants Officer {maternity leave cover)
Finance and Resources Assiatant
Finance & Resources Director, Company Secrelary
Investment Director

Accounts and (T Officer

Learning Fulures Cocrdinator
Communlcations nterm

Granis QOfficer

Communications Manager

Right Hare Coordinator

Adminisirator, Indla

Soclal Justice

Soclal Justice
Investments

Education and Learmng
Arls

Invasiments

Secilal Justica

India

Education and L.eaming
Social Justice

India

Arls

India

Arls

Educatian and Learming
Investmaents

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 7 More London Riverside, London, SE1 2RT

Solicitors

Wilhers LLP, 16 Old Balley, London EC4M 7EG
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